Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir y Fﬂlnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShII‘E

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: ClIir Tim Newhouse (Chairman)

. . CS/NG
Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman,
Clive Carver, Peter Curtis, lan Dunbar, 1 May 2014
Andy Dunbobbin, Ron Hampson, Ray Hughes,
Richard Jones, Richard L|Oyd, Mike Lowe, Tracy Waters 01352 702331

Paul Shotton, lan Smith and Arnold Woolley tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 8TH MAY, 2014 at 10.00 AM to consider the
following items.

Yours faithfully
e

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 April
2014.

4 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 11) (Pages 11 - 62)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



PEOPLE STRATEGY UPDATE (Pages 63 - 68)

Report of Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
enclosed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 69 - 72)
Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.




88.

89.

Agenda Item 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
16 APRIL 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall, Mold on
Thursday, 16 April 2014

PRESENT: Councillor Tim Newhouse (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman, Clive Carver, Peter Curtis,
Andy Dunbobbin, Ron Hampson, Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, Paul Shotton,
lan Smith and Arnold Woolley

APOLOGIES:

Cabinet Member for Corporate Management, Councillors: lan Dunbar, Ray
Hughes and Mike Lowe

Chief Executive

CONTRIBUTORS:

Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance, Head of Finance, Head
of Human Resources and Organisational Development, Head of ICT and
Customer Services, Head of Assets and Transportation, Revenues & Benefits
Manager and Finance Manager

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

Prior to the start of the meeting, Councillor Peter Curtis indicated that
two of the reports had been considered at the earlier Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee and queried why a joint meeting had not been held. The
Member Engagement Manager responded that the reports referred to would
have contained information relating particularly to Housing issues whereas the
reports to this committee contained more corporate information. He added
that only 15% of the agenda was duplicated and therefore a joint meeting with
the two committees was not appropriate.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Arnold Woolley declared a personal interest in agenda item
4 — Improvement Plan Monitoring Report, as he was Chair of the Flintshire
Scouts Executive Committee.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 March, 2014
had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

Matters Arising

Councillor Clive Carver referred to the penultimate paragraph on page
4 and indicated that he had not received the information on the number of

Page 1



90.

vacancies that had been requested at the meeting. The Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development apologised for the delay in
providing the information but advised that she had sent it to the Member
Engagement Manager just before the start of this meeting for circulation to
Members. She asked Members to contact her if they had any further queries
following receipt of the information.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORT

The Chairman introduced the report for Members to note and consider
elements of the 2013/14 Mid Year Improvement Plan Monitoring report
relevant to the Committee for the period October to December 2013. He
introduced the officers in attendance for each section to the Committee.

Councillor Richard Jones felt that presentations by the officers should
be provided as had been at the earlier meeting of Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Councillor Paul Shotton referred to appendix one on Welfare Reform
and asked whether assistance had been put in place to help tenants who
wanted to downsize and he welcomed that employees in the Flintshire
Connects offices would be able to provide assistance to Universal Credit
claimants. He also sought clarification on whether the Connah’s Quay
Flintshire Connects office would be opening in June 2004 as scheduled and
whether it would enable a more agile working arrangement. In response, the
Revenues and Benefits Manager said that the lack of smaller properties for
tenants to move into was a problem and work was ongoing to try and identify
an outcome. On the issue of Universal Credit, he commented on the
partnership agreement that was in place to provide support for claimants,
which was funded by the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP). He
added that the first tranche in the pilot scheme were single people under the
age of 25 so an increase in demand for assistance was not expected due to
the small numbers eligible under the pilot scheme. The Head of ICT and
Customer Services confirmed that the Connah’s Quay Flintshire Connects
office was expected to open on 9 June 2014 as scheduled. The maijority of
staff from the Connah’s Quay Council Office were being relocated to the Flint
office along with some employees from Phase 4 in County Hall. Due to the
number of staff now based in the Flint office, agile working was being adopted
and encouraged.

Councillor Arnold Woolley queried the date on appendix one and was

assured by the Head of ICT and Customer Services that the data related to
Quarter 3 — October to December 2013.

Page 2



In referring to the issue of hotdesking and agile working, Councillor
Marion Bateman asked whether it was possible for Members to have
Flintshire County Council owned mobile phone numbers for officers working
from home as they were not displayed on the infonet. The Head of ICT and
Customer Services confirmed that officer's work extension numbers could be
transferred to an alternative number such as their mobile or home number.
However, this was not applied consistently in all areas of the Council and he
agreed that Flintshire County Council owned mobile numbers should be
published on the infonet. Councillor Clive Carver also raised concern about
not being able to contact those officers who were working from home. He
referred to the Council’'s new website which he had experienced difficulty in
navigating around as he felt that some of the information was not where he
expected it to be. Councillor Richard Jones also commented on the
difficulties of contacting officers on Council owned mobile numbers and that
the issue was particularly a problem in Social Services.

Councillor Marion Bateman commented on electronic document
management and stressed the importance of ensuring that documents were
scanned in chronological order

In response to a question from Councillor Richard Lloyd about
Community Asset Transfer and a suggestion that land that the Saltney Scout
Group were based on had been offered to the District Scout Committee, the
Head of Assets and Transportation said that he was not aware of such a
suggestion but that he would check and would respond to Councillor Lloyd
directly.

Councillor Haydn Bateman asked whether the establishment of the
Welfare Rights Team was permanent and sought clarification on increases in
Fees and Charges. The Revenues and Benefits Manager confirmed that the
Welfare Rights Team was an established team but the Welfare Reform
Response Team was a temporary team which had been set up specifically to
assist residents to deal with the changes resulting from welfare reform. On
the issue of Fees and Charges, the Head of Finance said that it had been an
aspiration of Flintshire County Council’'s to have a corporate authority wide
approach to fees and charges and the significant piece of work to enable
consideration of this was now being undertaken. Discussions with Members
on how to develop it as part of the overall financial strategy would be
undertaken later in the year. She explained that the work would be
challenging as it may result in increased charges or charges being introduced
for services that were not currently charged for and could involve looking at
more discretionary services.

The issue of personal development plans arising from appraisals
highlighted on page 26 was referred to by Councillor Arnold Woolley who
sought clarification as to whether this had been undertaken and he also
commented on the future actions. In response, the Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development referred to the organisational
change model and the new senior management structure and confirmed that
performance appraisals were already in place. She said that in recognition of

Page 3



the changing size and shape of the organisation, the focus on performance
and skills development through performance appraisals and development
plans would become increasingly more critical. She commented that there
would be renewed focus now around development plans which would be an
important part of the transitional arrangements for the new operating model.

In referring to the issue of fees and charges, Councillor Peter Curtis
commented on discussions at the recent meeting of the Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee about charges for grass cutting. He asked that
consideration be given to the impact of fees and charges on people when
considering any future changes.

Councillor Richard Jones referred to appraisals and indicated that the
problem of non-compliance could be resolved if it was included in all line
manager’'s appraisals that all staff that they supervised had to have had an
appraisal. On the issue of fees and charges, he had raised concern at budget
time in February about a charge for financial management assistance for
vulnerable people and reiterated the importance of being mindful of the impact
of changing or implementing fees and charges. The Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development agreed with the comments on
performance appraisals and advised that details of the numbers of completed
appraisals were already included in the six monthly Heads of Service
performance reports. The Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development added that it was essential for senior managers to be held
directly responsible for ensuring that there were effective performance
management arrangements in place for their teams and appraisals
completed. Councillor Jones welcomed this which would allow monitoring of
appraisals to be undertaken by the appropriate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee and any resultant concerns to be reported to the Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee. He also asked that his thanks
be passed on to Mel Evans for the work he had undertaken on the Buckley
Flintshire Connects Office. In response to a question from Councillor Jones
on the asset transfer of Buckley Baths, the Head of Assets and Transportation
advised that the transfer was currently in progress..

On the issue of fees and charges, the Head of Finance indicated that
the issue would be a challenge but that any policy consideration would require
an equalities impact assessment to assess the impact of implementation of, or
changes to, fees and charges.

The Leader of the Council said that it was worth reiterating that not all
fees and charges would automatically be increased as it had only been stated
that a review would be undertaken. He explained that he had responded to
the question raised by Councillor Jones at the Council’'s budget meeting but
that he would ensure that the answer was circulated again. He felt that a
review of fees and charges was an opportunity to look at the policy to ensure
that a consistent approach was being undertaken which could result in
additional income being generated if it was appropriate to do so. Councillor
Marion Bateman suggested that Members should have sight of any future
letters sent to Flintshire residents about changes to fees and charges as she

Page 4



91.

felt that the letter about grass cutting had been misleading. The Leader of the
Council said that it was important to separate the policy review from the
implementation aspect of any changes.

Councillor Haydn Bateman asked about the North Wales Procurement
Partnership (NWPP) referred to on page 48. In response the Head of ICT and
Customer Services advised that the partnership ceased approximately 18
months ago. Subsequently a Welsh National Procurement Service covering
the whole public sector had been launched in November 2013. The Council
had also become a member of the Welsh Purchasing Consortium (WPC)
which was made up of 19 local authorities instead of six which formed the
NWPP. Councillor Richard Jones stressed the need to ensure that local
companies were used for supplying local goods and queried whether this
would be more difficult as the Consortium covered a larger area. The Head of
ICT and Customer Services said that it was important to get the balance right
and said that Flintshire County Council was a member on the WPC Board and
that sourcing of goods or services could also be regional or sub-regional. He
explained that the WPC would set criteria for considering suppliers and it
could not just be based on the fact that they were local; he also commented
on lotting strategies. The Head of Assets and Transportation added that
some contracts had community benefits clauses included in them, which he
detailed, to ensure that some money was put back into the local economy.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee notes the 2013/14 Mid Year Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report and will continue to highlight and monitor poor performance
and feedback details of any challenge to the Policy, Performance &
Partnerships Team for reporting to Cabinet where appropriate.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 10)

The Head of Finance introduced a report to provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 10) information for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which had been submitted to
Cabinet on 15 April 2014. She introduced the Finance Manager to the
Committee. On this occasion, the information had gone to Cabinet prior to
coming to Scrutiny simply as a result of the change made to the date of the
April meeting.

For the Council Fund, the projected net in-year expenditure was
reported to be £2.151m less than budget which was an increase of £0.170m
on the £1.981m reported at Month 9. The main items contributing to the
£0.170m variance included the identification of efficiencies under the
Corporate Administration review and improved trading and reduced costs in
Leisure which was offset by an overall increase in the cost of Out of County
placements. This continued to be a significant pressure on the budget and
there was a need to ensure the issue was monitored for the remainder of the
2013/14 financial year and into 2014/15 and onwards.

Page 5



92.

Carry forward requests were detailed in paragraphs 3.06 to 3.11 which were
for works which had been planned for 2013/14 but had not been completed
during this period. Section 5 detailed the budget assumptions and new risks
and explained that the costs associated with the clean up of the former
chemical plan in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd) were being monitored monthly. The
Head of Finance explained that it had previously been projected that the cost
to the Council in 2013/14 would be £0.400m but it was now expected to be
nearer to £0.300m, with further costs in 2014/15 which were being quantified;
further details of the costs would be sent to Members when available. She
added that the Council were now in ownership of the site and once the clean-
up had been completed, it was planned that the site would be
decommissioned and sold. Agreement of the clean up decommissioning plan
would determine the cost in 2014/15.

The projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 was £4.792m.
The overall projected underspend for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
for 2013/14 was £0.089m and a projected closing balance at Month 10 of
£1.522m, which at 5.33% of total expenditure satisfied the prudent approach
of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

In response to a query from Councillor Marion Bateman about whether
the Council had incurred costs of £0.300m for the clear-up of the former
Euticals site, the Head of Finance said that the Council and Natural
Resources Wales had incurred costs and financial help had been sought from
the Welsh Government but this had not been made available. Flintshire
County Council had incurred costs due to it's responsibilities for
environmental protection to make the site safe and it was unlikely that all of
the costs would be recovered.

Councillor Haydn Bateman asked about the winter maintenance
reserve and whether it had been used. The Head of Finance explained that
as part of the 2012/13 budget, it had been agreed that a reserve of £0.250m
would be included for winter maintenance but due to the mild winter this had
not been used so a top-up to the reserve would not be required as part of the
closedown for the 2013/14 budget. There had been a requirement to
purchase salt and replenish the stocks and details of the amounts spent
would be available in the budget outturn report.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

WELFARE REFORM UPDATE

The Revenues and Benefits Manager introduced a report to update
Members on the latest position regarding Welfare Reform.

He detailed the background to the report explaining that it had been

agreed that arrangements were needed to report on the operational aspects
of managing Welfare Reform. Members had received an update at a

Page 6



workshop in November 2013 and the report which was aligned to the
Council’'s performance reporting cycle had been submitted to Cabinet in
March 2014 and Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee in April 2014. He
provided details on the following key areas:-

Benefit Cap

Maximum Rent Social Sector (MRSS)

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Discretionary Assistance Fund (DAF)

Personal Independence Payments

Universal Credit (UC)

Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP)

Welfare Reform Training and Development Programme
Welfare Reform Response Team (WRRT)

The Leader of the Council thanked the Revenues and Benefits
Manager for the detailed report. He detailed the reasons for its submission to
other forums and said that the Council should be proud that it had gone above
and beyond what other Councils had done in the United Kingdom and it
meant that the Council was not fire-fighting. On the issue of Universal Credit,
he said that the Council had not asked to be part of the pilot scheme and
Shotton was the only area in Wales that had been selected. The point of the
report was that once the Welfare Reform board had been dissolved and all
was operational, there had been a need to ensure that all involved received
updates, which he hoped Members welcomed and would continue to receive
them in the future.

Councillor Paul Shotton thanked officers for the report but stated that
he found aspects of the information reported to members about the impacts of
welfare reform concerning. He referred to the crisis loan scheme which had
been replaced by the DAF which was a cash limited fund which would initially
run until March 2015. He asked whether a scheme would be put in place to
replace the DAF when it ceased. He commented on the loophole within the
MRSS (commonly known as Bedroom Tax) which had since been closed and
the undertaking by Councils in London to move benefit claimants out of
London because of the Benefit Cap. Councillor Shotton raised concern about
the distress caused due to the delay in processing Personal Independence
Payments and asked whether any processes were in place to rectify the
problems experienced. He spoke of the Universal Credit pilot scheme in
Shotton which had resulted in three claims being received and welcomed the
comment that support would be provided for those affected at the Connah’s
Quay Council and Citizen’s Advice Bureau offices. In response, the
Revenues and Benefits Manager advised that the DAF scheme in England
would not be available from April 2015 but an announcement for Wales was
still awaited.

Councillor lan Smith queried whether any tenants had been made
homeless and asked whether tenants were building up rent arrears because
of the ‘bedroom tax’. In response, the Revenues and Benefits Manager said
that he was not aware of any tenant becoming homeless because of the

Page 7



changes in Welfare Reform. He added that he did not have the details with
him but there had not been as many arrears as it had thought there might be.
He commented on the direct payments of rents to tenants and said that this
had seen a 50% to 60% increase in arrears but it was not a straightforward
issue and it was difficult to assess.

Councillor Peter Curtis commented on the Personal Independence
Payments for disabled persons who previously received Disability Living
Allowance (DLA) and raised significant concern that the benefit claimants
were being included in the category ‘workers and shirkers’. He felt that the
situation would get worse. He referred to the increase in rent arrears of
£0.008k compared to the same period in 2012/13 and gave congratulations to
the team involved for ensuring that claimants were given the best possible
service. Councillor Curtis felt that there was a need to reconsider the housing
allocation policy and raised concern at comments that claimants could take in
lodgers so that they did not have to pay the ‘bedroom tax’. He welcomed the
proactive stance taken by the Council and the help and support that was
being provided to claimants if they needed and wanted it.

Councillor Marion Bateman thanked the Revenues and Benefits
Manager and his team for their hard work and asked what was in place to
deal with the problems caused by direct payments to tenants. In response the
Revenues and Benefits Manager commented on the safeguarding policy in
place for those on Universal Credit which he detailed, which would protect
landlords. He added that the idea of Universal Credit was that people took
control of their own finances.

Councillor Arnold Woolley echoed the comments of congratulations to
the Revenues and Benefits Manager and his team. He asked whether
consideration had been given to sealing up bedrooms in oversized properties
so that they could not available to be used by the tenants and therefore would
not incur the ‘bedroom tax’. The Revenues and Benefits Manager responded
that the property would still be classed as containing the same number of
bedrooms no matter what was done with it. He added that tenants and/or
landlords would still be receiving rent based on the number of bedrooms in
the property, even if they were not all available for use.

Councillor Ron Hampson commented on the problems faced because
of the ‘bedroom tax’ due to the lack of one and two bedroom properties. He
felt that the amount of rent arrears would increase which he felt would be a
tremendous strain on the Council.

Councillor Clive Carver referred to the earlier comment about
safeguarding payments to the landlord but queried what happened to tenants
when the landlord was not paid. The Revenues and Benefits Manager
advised that if tenants were paid their housing benefit and this was not
passed onto the landlord, then this was an issue for the landlord...

In response to a question from Councillor Richard Lloyd about whether
landlords attended an accreditation scheme, the Revenues and Benefits

Page 8



93.

94.

Manager confirmed that no such scheme was in place. Councillor Lloyd also
asked what happened if tenants withheld rent because of issues with the
rented property such as damp. The Revenues and Benefits Manager
explained that if there was a dispute about the property and the landlord
contacted the Council, contact would then be made with the tenant and the
rent payment could be withheld until the dispute was resolved.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to consider
the Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

He detailed the items reported for consideration at the 8 May, 12 June
and 10 July 2014 meetings but added that the Workforce Information report
had been omitted from the Forward Work Programme. During earlier
discussions, further information on appraisals had been requested, and the
Member Engagement Manager suggested that this be incorporated into the
Workforce Information report.

The Head of ICT and Customer Services advised that due to delays in
the receipt of the Annual Improvement Report from Wales Audit Office, the
report might not be available for consideration at the 8 May 2014 meeting.

In response to a query from Councillor Richard Lloyd about whether a
monthly update on the former Euticals site at Sandycroft was to be provided,
the Member Engagement Manager advised that he would ask the Head of
Finance to include the information in the monthly Revenue Budget Monitoring
reports about the amounts spent on the site.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Forward Work Programme be approved subject to the
Committee noting that the Annual Improvement Report from Wales
Audit Office may not be available for May 2014;

(b) That the Workforce Information Report including progress on
appraisals be included in the Forward Work Programme; and

(c) That updates on the Euticals issue be included within the Revenue
Budget Monitoring reports.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press in attendance.

Page 9



(The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.52 pm)

Chairman

Page 10



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 8 MAY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH
)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide members with the Revenue Budget monitoring 2013/14
report as at month 11.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Revenue budget monitoring reports are provided on a monthly basis
to Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee before being
presented to Cabinet in the same cycle.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The revenue budget monitoring report as at month 11 is attached
which is scheduled for Cabinet on 13 May 2014.

3.02 Each month, budget monitoring reports are based on actual income
and expenditure to a given point (in this case Month 11) but also
project the most up to date position possible to year end.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Members are asked to note the report.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set outin the report.

6.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 None.

Page 11



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Revenue budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 11) report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:
Telephone:
Email:

Page 12



Appendix A
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 13 MAY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 11)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the latest revenue budget monitoring information
for 2013/14 for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account,
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 11 and projected
forward to year-end based on the most up to date information available.

1.02 INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 Executive Summary

Paragraph Council Fund Summary Table

3.01

Section 4 Inflation

Section 5 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & New Risks
Section 6 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 7 Housing Revenue Account

Appendix 1 Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 10
Appendix 2 | Community Services -Variances Summary

Appendix 3 | Environment -Variances Summary

Appendix 4 | Lifelong Learning -Variances Summary

Appendix 5 Corporate Services -Variances Summary

Appendix 6 | Central & Corporate Finance -Variances Summary
Appendix 7 | Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account -Variances Summary
Appendix 9 | Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 11 is as follows:
Council Fund

o Net in year expenditure forecast to be £2.215m less than budget. (An
increase of £0.064m on the £2.151m reported at Month 10).

Page 13



3.00

3.01

e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of £4.901m.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.171m less than budget

(£0.089m as at Month 10).

e Projected closing balance at 31 March 2014 of £1.605m.

COUNCIL FUND LATEST IN YEAR FORECAST

The table below shows a projected positive variation of expenditure against

budget of £2.215m.
Original Revised In-Year Over /
Budget evise (Under) spend
TOTAL EXPENDITURE AND g Budget
INCOME Month Month
10 11
£m £m £m £m
DIRECTORATES (Service Groups)
Services for Adults 45.642 44,242 (0.793) (0.780)
Services for Children 11.906 12.135 0.732 0.712
Housing Services 1.800 1.728 (0.258) (0.254)
Development & Resources 1.688 1.628 0.051 0.114
TOTAL : COMMUNITY SERVICES 61.036 59.733 (0.268) (0.208)
Assets and Transportation 6.015 6.091 (0.180) (0.175)
Planning 1.708 1.717 (0.045) (0.042)
Public Protection 3.455 3.464 (0.072) (0.073)
Regeneration 0.715 0.704 0.022 0.032
Streetscene 19.320 19.210 0.370 0.331
Management, Support &
Performance 1.088 1.076 (0.023) (0.023)
TOTAL : ENVIRONMENT 32.301 32.262 0.072 0.050
Culture & Leisure 6.876 6.468 0.364 0.314
Inclusion Services 14.058 13.292 0.016 0.027
Primary School Services 43.374 43.277 (0.190) (0.176)
Secondary School Services 36.638 37.500 (0.014) (0.010)
Development & Resources 12.118 12.437 (0.278) (0.313)
TOTAL : LIFELONG LEARNING 113.064 | 112,974 | (0.102) (0.158)
Chief Executive 2.356 2.303 (0.087) (0.123)
Finance 14.265 14.225 (1.082) (1.039)
HR & OD 2.427 2422 (0.013) (0.022)
ICT & Customer Services 4.922 5.048 (0.020) (0.018)
Legal & Democratic Services 3.145 3.142 (0.145) (0.148)
TOTAL : CORPORATE SERVICES 27.115 27.140 (1.347) (1.350)
TOTAL DIRECTORATES 233.516 | 232.109 (1.645) (1.666)
Central and Corporate Finance 26.236 27.643 (0.506) (0.549)
Total 259.752 | 259.752 (2.151) (2.215)

Page 14




3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

4.00
4.01

4.02

The original budget column reflects in-year virements which have been
approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules.

All the movements from Month 10 are summarised in Appendix 1 with the
detailed reasons for all variances by Directorate summarised within
Appendices 2 to 8.

Carry Forward Requests

During the period a number of areas have been identified that may require
the carrying forward of funding into 2014/15. These items will be given
careful consideration over the coming weeks and an update will be provided
in the month 12 report with regard to those recommended for approval.

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2013/14 budget contains £5.331m of specific efficiencies and the table
below summarises the current position in relation to the achievement of
these items. The analysis shows that it is currently projected that £4.270m
(80%) will be achieved resulting in a net underachievement of £1.061m.

Value of Valued of (Under) Over
. . Budgeted | Projected .
Status of Efficiency Efficiency | Efficiency Achui:\::ment
£m £m
ALREADY ACHIEVED 2.583 2.583 0.000
EXPECTED TO BE ACHIEVED IN 1.392 1.392 0.000
FULL
ACHIEVABLE IN PART 0.456 0.295 (0.161)
NOT ACHIEVABLE 0.900 0.000 (0.900)
Total 5.331 4.270 (1.061)
INFLATION

Pay Inflation of £0.734m is included within service budgets to reflect the
national pay award agreed earlier in the year.

Non Standard price inflation — amounts for energy, fuel and food costs
are included in the budget and held centrally. In month 6, £0.141m for food
costs were allocated. The allocation for energy costs continues to be
closely monitored and at this stage it is anticipated that all of this budget will
be required to meet the increased costs in 2013/14 and this is reflected in
the projected outturn.

Page 15



5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND NEW RISKS

Along with its strategic partners, the Council has intervened in relation to
the former chemical plant in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd). Estimated costs have
now been revised and are reflected in the projections to the end of March
2014. This has reduced the anticipated expenditure in 2013/14 to £0.300m
from the £0.400m previously estimated early in the financial year.

The Out of County Service in Lifelong Learning is demand led and is
dependent on service user need; young people with a Statement of SEN
are entitled to school-based education to the age of 19. Many of these
have expensive placements given their severity of need. The numbers of
these young people change throughout the year and any change can
significantly affect projected expenditure.

Similarly, expenditure for Out of County placements in Children’s Services
is also highly volatile. The focus of high cost placements are now a North
Wales project and will continue to be reviewed.

Members will be aware that the Council sold its claims in LBl (formerly
Landisbanki) in February 2014 and is no longer a creditor of LBI. There will
be a need to complete the final impairment adjustment once CIPFA has
issued the annual year end guidance on accounting for impairments in
Icelandic banks; which will have a final revenue impact on the Central
Loans and Investment account.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 July 2013 (above the base level of £5.564m) of
£3.409m after taking into account a commitment in 2013/14 for use of
£0.297m to meet one-off time limited costs. In July, Cabinet allocated
£0.250m to the Winter maintenance reserve, bringing the level in the
reserve to £3.159m.

An amount of £0.518m has previously been set aside in relation to the
Severe Weather costs of last year. The actual severe weather recovery
costs of £0.473m have now been allocated to the Environment Directorate
from the unearmarked reserves and replaces the previously reported
estimate.

After bringing in the impact of the projected in year budget position the

current projected level of the contingency reserve at the end of March 2014
is £4.901m

Page 16



7.00
7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 19 February 2013, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2013/14 of £28.259m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £0.903m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent
approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July 2013 showed a
closing balance at the end of 2012/13 of £1.931m which was £0.861m more
than when the 2013/14 budget was set. This had the effect of increasing the
opening balance for 2013/14 by the same amount.

For 2013/14 there is an overall projected under spend of £0.171m and a
projected closing balance at Month 11 of £1.605m, which at 5.61% of total
expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of
3%.

Carry Forward Request:

It is requested to carry forward £0.085m to fund software costs in relation to
job scheduling and PDA's (Personal Digital Assistant hand held devices)
that have not materialised in 2013/14 but will be purchased in 2014/15 and
£0.015m due to the maisonette decant costs not being fully spent in the
year.

Appendix 8 details the reasons for the significant variances occurring to
date and the actions planned to deal with them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:-
a) Note the overall report.

b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31%' March
2014 (paragraph 6.03).

c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account (paragraph 7.03).

d) Approve the carry forward request (paragraph 7.04)
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are as set out in Sections 3.00 - 7.00 of the
report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

Page 17



10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 10 - Appendix 1
Council Fund Significant Variances - Appendices 2 - 6

Council Fund - Movements on unearmarked reserves - Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances - Appendix 8

Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies - Appendix 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 18



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

- FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FSW y Fflint

Flims.h‘m Budget Monitoring (Month 11
Summary of Movement from Month 10

Month 10

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 11

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation
Community Services

Services For Adults
® Locality Teams - Domiciliary Care £0.032m, the increase is due to the impact of new clients, including direct
payment clients. Locality teams - there have been additional payments to voluntary organisations

£0.018m.There has been some additional OT costs £0.015m and minor adaptations costs £0.015m and minor

adaptations costs £0.022m due to an increase in service demand.

* Disability Services (Resource and Regulated Services) - a review of transition client costs has taken place
recently which has resulted in actual care costs in this service being less than originally anticipated.

* Mental Health Services (Residential & Domiciliary) - reflects a budget realignment from Residential &

Domicilliary to Mental Health Contract Services £0.024m. The balance £0.013m is due to a reduction of client

® Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults

Development & Resources

* Commissioning - this budget paid FCC's contribution to the North East Wales commissioning bub which has
delivered efficiences for the Council.

* Training - expenditure commitments have now been established on the P2P system which has increased
previous projections.
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Services For Childrens

= Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Housing Services
® Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Total: Community Services

Environment

Assets & Transportation
* Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Planning
¢ QOther minor changes of less than £0.010m

Public Protection

* Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Regeneration
* Cumulative minor changes of less than £0.010m

Streetscene
* Waste Disposal & Collection - reduction in expected leachate monitoring income

e Streetscene - Gritting costs reduced due to milder winter weather conditions

® Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Total: Environment

Page 19

£m £m
(1.645)
(0.506)
(2.151)
(1.666)
(0.549)
(2.215)
!0.064!
0.082
(0.084)
0.037
(0.022)
0.013
0.025
0.031
0.007
0.063
(0.020)
(0.020)
0.004
0.004
0.060
0.005
0.005
0.003
0.003
(0.001)
(0.001)
0.010
0.010
0.015
(0.050)
(0.004)
(0.039)
(0.022)

Appendix 1



Lifelong Learning

Culture & Leisure
® Leisure Services - minor variances.

® Libraries, Culture & Heritage - The projected expenditure has reduced by £0.035m since period 10. £0.010m
relates to minor efficiencies in Libraries & Arts. £0.008m relates to minor savings in County Records Office and
Records Management. £0.007m relates to minor estimated savings in Museums & Heritage. £0.011m relates to
School Library Service.

inciusion Services
® inclusion Services - minor variances.
¢ Qut of County - minor variances.

Primary School Services
® Primary School Services - minor variances.

Secondary School Services
e Secondary School Services - minor variances.

Development & Resources
¢ Children, Youth & Community - minor variances.
® Business Units - minor variances.
® Facilities - minor variances.

¢ Management & Business Support - minor variances.
Total: Lifelong Learning

Corporate Services
* Legal and Democratic Services - minor variances (£0.003m)

* HR and Organisational Development - reduction in DBS expenditure (£0.004m), vacancy savings (£0.003m),
minor variances (£0.002m)

e ICT and Customer Services - registrars income £0.006m, postage spend (£0.004m.

e Finance - reduced surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund £0.056m, reduced shortfall on CTRS (£0.002m),
minor variances (£0.011m)

e Chief Executives Department - vacancy savings £0.027m, use of LSB Grant (£0.024m), minor variances
£0.015m

Central Services

®  Euticals - Revised Estimate of costs of works

*  Write Offs - Higher than anticipated presentation of cut of date cheques

® Minor Variances

Total: Central Services

Total Changes

Page 20

(0.014)
(0.035)
(0.049)
0.002
0.009
0.011
0.014
0.014
0.004
0.004
0.009
(0.023)
(0.007)
(0.015)
(0.036)
(0.056)
(0.003)
(0.009)
0.002
0.043
(0.036)
(0.003)
(0.003)
(0.100)
0.034
0.023
{0.043)
(0.043)
(0.064)

Appendix 1



‘puadsiano 8y} ssalppe

0] Aem ajeudoidde jsow

8y} sulwIa)ap 0} palsinbal yiom
Jayuny 3JIAI9G [BljUSPISSY

‘uoljesijeuonel
196pnq ul paisnipe pusdsiapun
90IAI5G uoljepodsuel] jusi|D

1eah

jusuno ayj ybnoayy Aem ued
Buiaq Ayjioe; ayy jo Buluado ay)
0] anp uasue sey pue Buunoal
uou pue }Jjo-suo si jsuiebe

"awooul (wgy0'03)

uiesH pue (woL0"03) Juad Aq Jesyo
(#¥0°03) soo1nues pue sayddns jeuoippe
pue (Ww490°03) S1s09 sasiwaid |euonippe
(WG0Z 03) 19A0D JE)S BINSUS O} PO3U

ayj 0} anp (WG6L"03) SJIAISS [eNUSPISSY
“@snoy-uj uiyum puadsisao psjosfosd

e Aq 19s)j0 a1e spuadsiapun asay |
spuadsiaAo Jouiw Jayjo Ag }osyo

- (WS 03) selouedeA 0} anp Ajsow
(wy$0°03) puadsiapun s80IAISS Aeg
"S9IOUBOEA JJE)S 0) saje|jal (wgzo'03)
puadsiapun 321AI8G UOBHOdSUBI] JualD
‘stopinoud

aled J0)oas Juspuadapul pue Juswsajges.
Jo asn Jayealb o) anp (Wze0'03)
puadsiapun aled) Aediwoq aSnoy-u|
Joues|3 sA|7 uo puadsispun wzo0 03
Jayuny e snid ‘Apjioey} ay) Buiusdo u) Aejep
[entur ue o} anp s (Wy9g 03) sulwser

(juswa|geay pue
9)eJu|) S92IBS
pale|nbay

¢ XIAN3ddVv

puadsispun ay|8le]y enxg| sA|7 uo puadsiepun pajosioid 31e) enx3|(62£0) (gzc0) V.6V 20€°S pue s82In0say
"YjleaH woJj palenodal aie (wgen'03)

S]S00 9S8y | “Wea | UOIUBAISIU| SISUD (juswsjqeay

ay} ul Buianog Ja)IopN |B100S |eydsoH pue a)eju|) YoM

"JOo-8uQ e 0} anp Ajisow s puadsiapun ay1 [(6£0°0)  [(+¥0°0) L9€°0 G0¥°0 [e100S |eydsoH

S)|NpY 10} S39IAIaS

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
palinbay uonoy aouenep Jofepy jo asne EMM 3 aoueue SHONNO 196png 82IAJ0
! I WeA J0lely § J jseT] HeA pejoafoid | pesiney IAI9S
aosueuep
(11 Yuon) pi/g 102 Buioyuop yabpng
SIDIAYIS ALINNWNOD

Page 21



¢ XIAN3ddVv

‘puewap
a0 ul sabueyo ay) 198}j81 YoIym 90JAIas
abue| siy) ssosoe seoueuea Bunesuadwiod
J8Y10 BWos ale a18y] ‘¢ yuow
‘faessoosu| wouy pabueyoun sulews. pue ‘uonosfoud
uanoud jI psisnipe pue mainsl puadsiapun }au 8y} UIyIM Woy L 03
Jspun ydey aq |m asay| 0 Buines e 10§ syjunoodoe siy| yieaH (seo1n08
-suondwnsse juauno uo paseq| pue NO4 usamiaq sebexoed papuny juiof Aingesiq)
si sabeyoed papuny Ajuiol| jo mairal e jo Joedwi pajoadxe ay) 19sHo S92IN9G
uo yjesH yum suonenobau ay) djay 0y }o6pnq e sapnjoul 821AI8S SIY} pajejnbay
o} uonjefas u puadsiepun ay] | psjou Aisnojneid sy - sanjigestg buiuieaj(9ei'0)  [(022°0)  [€8E'GL €09'Gl pue 82JN0SaYy
s|aAs| Ayaoe €1/2102
uo paseq jobpnq o} Yidn Buimoj|oy
puewsap psonpai 0} 8np (Wz0'03)
puadsiapun suonejdepe Joul <
‘S1509 81ed Aeljioiwop
paseyoind 0} anp (wz 90 03) puadsiano
0] parosloid si euswag 19suQ Ape] <
‘'swes) "S}S02 1asn 92IAISS |euol)ippe
Anjeso] ay) Jo ued se Bulutiewal| o} anp (wge0’03) puadsiano o} pajosiod
aoines Adesay] |euonednao ale s)s0D |eljuaplisal paseyoind <
ay} Ajuo yym BuipesH saoinIeg *S)S00 JOSN 92IAISS |euoljippe
Aypgesiq ayp uiyum umoys mou| o} anp (wgyz0'03) puadsiano o} pajoafold
ale sjebpng wea} A)jeoo] ay} ale s)s00 Auel||1o1wop paseyoind <
J0 yed se papnjoul Ajsnoinaid ‘s)sod jueoea
Sjuswala |SOd @Y1 Jo 1ol | 01 anp Apsow (wggl'03) pusadsiapun 0}
paioadxs Jayiebo) aie swea| Ajjedo] < (seneoo)
"MaIA8) JBpun daay) S80IAISS 910084 J9pl0|(6¥0°0)  [EE00 yL6'El 188°€L swea | AjjedoT
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
b [ HilowW uInyng yobpng
palinbay uonoy aoueuep Jolep Jo asne) jseT aoueleA pejosfoid | pestaey RV TS
asuelep
(11 wuow) ¥1/€10Z Bunoyiuol 3obpng
SADIANYIS ALINNWINOD

Page 22



¢ XIAN3IddV

(s9o1nueg
Aungesiq)
"S}S0D JOSN 32IAI8S UOI)SUEL) EELIVETS
"Ma|A8J Japun daay) |euolIppe 0} anp s| puadsiano ayL|y10°0 1¢00 ¢09'L 18571 Ayigesig
"awoou) Juelb Jay)o |euonippe awos
Aq19syo ‘(s|doad bBuipoddng) "wgzo 03 (s@o1n18g
J0 awooul Jelb jo ||ejuoys e pue Aupgesiq)
‘weL0°03) vodsuen (w0 03) siuswAed S92INBS
Aued payy {(wgzo 03) s1soo Aed yeis Auigesig
‘malnal Japun daay| jsuiebe spuadsiano 0} anp Ajjsow si syl |90L 0 9010 ¥92°0 8590 pue uonjisuels |
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuo
paiinbay uonoy aoueuep Jolep Jo asnen jsen asuelLeA i) yobpng CRTVNETS
; - H - < pajoaloid | pesinay .
aoueLEA
(11 ysuow) y1/€10Z Bunoyuol 1o6png
S3JIAN3IS ALINNIWNOD

Page 23



‘Aed ou yym asuasqe
paaibe ue Bumojoj uononpal 1509 Aed

(2211195 asnsI
aoue)sqng

'8 UlleeH
|elusy) Hoddng

"}J0-8uQ| Ho-auo e o} anp (ws0'03) Ansow sisiyi(eil'0)  [(SLL'0)  |pL20 6280 [EUOISS3J0.d
“SJUBIIO MBU JBYJ0 BWOS
Buipnjoul sabeyoed aied jJuaund Jo 1S00
ay) s1o9421 Inq Jaybiy aq alojai1sy) pjnom
puadsiapun juaund ay] ‘9oIAI8S 8y}
ojui a0 sy} Buliaysuely uy Aejap e usaq
sey aJay) ‘abexoed uosued) }sod ybiy e (@21118G asnsI
UYM [BNPIAIPUI UE JO Y}eaH wouj Jajsuel) aoueysgng
8y} Jo uonejoadxa ayj 199)ja1 01 €102 '8 UlesH
Ul eaJe siy) 0) pappe uaaq sey jebpng [SUETNEESIIVELS
weSZ0 03 [euonippe uy ‘sabexoed Aeoiwoq
‘M8IA84 Japun daayj| a1ed Juaund uo paseq s puadsiapun siyl |(¥010) (290°0) 1850 $59°0 pue [euapisay
(seainuag
(wg00°03) s¥s00 sasiwaud Augesiq)
pue (wgGQ'03) sisoo Aed yejs jsuiebe poddng
‘MalAal Japun daay puadsiano ue 0} enp Apsow st SIY] |250°0 /900 650 260 anjesIsIuIWpY
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yyuow 6
palinbay uoyoy aoueuep Jofepy Jo asnen jse aouelep W0 opnd RITNETS
ooUBMEA pajosfosd | pasiAay :

¢ XION3ddv

S3DIAYIS ALINNWINOD

(11 yyuow) v1/€10Z Buiojiuoy 3ebpng

Page 24



¢ XION3ddVv

(c620) [(0820) [L9v'ey Wery ‘leyoyqnsg
(e1ebaubbe)
saoueleA
‘juaunoal aq 0} pajoadxa S)NpYy 10}
10U INQ M3IABJ 0} BNURUOYD "s@oueLIeA Joulw snoleA (gL L 0) (0osi°0) 666'C 6¥L ¥ S92IAIBS JBYI0
‘uMmouun aJe salep
uels Jo s)s090 jenuajod abejs
siu3 Je ybnoyye sualo yesH
[elusy jeuonippe Jo suonedipul (Amigesig
AJea aJe aley) se mou YLEL0Z Buiusea)
J04 pass|wsip pue palapisuod 10} sabeyjoed aied yuaund s}9)}8Y|(220°0 1200 6050 2810 19bpng oisuaio4
u@aq Sey SadIAIeS OM)
a2y} ueamiaq J1abpnqg Buiubye
-al Jo Aypgissod ayj ‘sunod
10 uosud wouy 2210U POYS Je
SpPUBLIBP pue sJ1aquunu Jus|o (sa1mieg asnsiy
ul sabueyo o} anp Aupejoa eouEISqQNs
[enuajod - maiaal Japun deay| vLELOC 8 YyeaH [EJUS)
1o} sabexoed aieo Juauind s}8ay|(601°0) (0L1°0) S6L°0 S0g’0 196png dl1suaio
(w3) (w3) (w3z) (wz)
Yjuo
palinbay uonoy asuelep 1ofepy jo asnen Jse aJueleA N0 19bpng LI TNETS
; : : - ; pajoaloud | pesinay :
LITEETH Y
(11 yuol) ¥1/€1L0Z Bunoliuop Jebpng
S3DIAY3S ALINNWINOD

Page 25



¢ XIAN3ddV

150°0 vLL0 eVl 629°L ‘|leyoiqng
(e1eba1b6b6e)
sajueleA
$92JN0SaYy
"Juaiinoal aq o} pajoadxa 9 Juawdojana
JOU INQ MBIABI 0} BnuUUOY "S90ouBLIEA Joujw snoueA|(6v0'0)  [#10°0 evLL 62L'L Jayl0
sisod jueoen jo Juswubijesy 0010 0010 0000 (001°0) lonuo) Adueoep
$921Nn0Say B juawdojaraq
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuop
pasinbay uonoy asueuep Jolep jo asne) isen asueleA o) 1ebpng CRIVTNT-T
X . 3 3 2 pajoafoid | pasiney !
aoueLIEA
(11 Yyuow) v1/£1L0Z Buirojiuol 3abpng
S3JIAYIS ALINNWNOD

Page 26



¢ XION3IddV

“Jeak |eloueuly siy} ul (seo1nmeg
paiinoul ag 0} pajoadxa MOU Jou S| YaIym s,uaipjiyn)
ain)puadxa Joj SJUBWHWWOD JO [BAOWS) Hoddng

ay) 0) anp Ajurew s puadssapun @y {(620°0) (0500 L9Y°G L1G°S |euolssajold
(saomueg
'sjsod jueoea 0} anp s ,uaipiy)) wea]
‘jJo-auQ | Ajisow s ease siy) uiypm puadsiapun ay1 {(110°0) (L¥00) 99¢°0 80€°0 BuipuayQ YyinoA

‘s1a1eo

ay) Joj @ouemoj|e Bujobuo ue yoespe

*saloudIoIYe a|qissod Alqeueaur yaiym siapio diysueipiens

pue Buluue|d aininy waoul [jIM [e10adg pue 2ouapisay 404 S18pJo
pue paJsapisuod Buiaqg si yoiym HNo9 Jo Jaquinu Buiseaiou) ay) 0} anp ERITVETS
JO 8WOoJN0 BY) UsNeUapUN|  OS|E SI}| "92IAIBS 8y} ulyim sjuawaoeld s,uaIpjiy))
u8aq sey wea| juswade|d 21E0 19)S0J JO JaqLINU 8y} Ul 8sealdul juawaoe|d
Apwe4 ay) Jo mainal | ue Jo Jnsal e se Ajulew s) puadsiano 8y (89¢€ 0 2.0 6¥€°C 116} Awey
uaip|iyo 10} SBJIALG

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3z)
Yjuol
palinbay uonoy asueuep Jolep jo asne) jsen aoueleA o 1obpng CRITNETS
: : 3 . : pajoafoid | pasiaay 3
aouelIBA
(11 Yyuow) ¥1/£10Z Buniojiuol 3abpng
S3JIAYIS ALINNNWOD

Page 27



¢ XION3ddV

ceL’o cLL0 JA4: 4] seL’cl jgjoygng
(eyeboibbe)
saoueleA
"|Juaiinoal aq o0} pajoadxa ualp|iyD o}
10U INg M3IAB] 0} BNUU0) "S30UBleA Jouiw SNOUEA|0LO 0 (1000) GGl'L GGl'L $921A8S 18410
‘PamaiAal 8q 0} panuijuod (seoinueg
i pue 108foid sajepn s,uaippyo)
YUON B Mou si sjuawaoeid "¥102 Yyotel 1e6png pajood
1500 ybiy Jo snooy 8y | |un dn sjuswaseld Buysixa 108|ja) SISO ¥z 0 c¢ev'o 019°¢ 8.1°€ Aunoj Jo 1IN0
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yijuol
paiinbay uonoy asueulep Jofepy Jo asnen jse] aouelep Lno 19bpng ERITNETS
) g : : > pajoafoid | pasinay :
aouBUEA
(11 yyuol) v1/€10Z Bunoyuoy Jo6png
S3ADIAYIS ALINNWNOD

Page 28



(89z'0)  |(80Z°0) [s2S°6S £€.°6S ‘lejolL
(gsz'0)  |(vSz0)  [vivL 8zZL'L ‘[ejoyqng
"juaunoal aq o) payoadxe (e1eboibbe)
JOU NG MalABI 0} BNUNUOYD ‘saoueleA Jouiw snouep |(SH0°0) (ev0°0) 2220 G920 sadueBleA Jayl0
(seonBeg
BuisnoH)
‘uonoafoid ulyym pajosjjal A|Iny mou wea] poddng
‘peluswsajdwi mou ainjonaisay| ainjonuisal e auobiapun Ajuadsal @218 ((900°0) (800°0) G60°L €oL'L uolepoW WOy
‘uoljepowwodoe ‘GLIYLOCZ Inun
Aelodwa) Jo 1s00 pakejap uaaq sey j0olosd asnoH Aenp
ay) aonpai o} aoe(d ul Ind uaaq ‘uoijepouwlwogoe (seoiniag
aABY SPOYlaW a1aym a0IAI8S Aieiodway jo )s00 ay) aonpai 0} aseid Buisnoy)
ay) w1 sjuswanosdwi 0} anp si| ul Ind usaqg aaey SpPoylBW aJaym 99IAI8S uol}EpOW WOy
aouelBA ‘MalAal Japun daay)[ eyl ul sjuswaacsdw 0) anp s) asueueAl(/ 02 0) (e0z°0) /SL°0 09€°0 SSOUSSO|aWOoH
S32IA19g BuisnoH
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
pasinbay uono asueueA Jofepy Jo asne :HMM " aosueue Hnno 1ebpng RV
Inbay uondy lBA JOfB § ) jseq lep pejoafoid | pesiney IMBS

aoueLBA

(L1 Wuow) p1/€10Z Bunojuol 3ebpng
S3JIAY3S ALINNWINOD

¢ XIAN3ddv

Page 29



Page 30



Mv\l I e

200'0 9000 €9v'v LSY'v ssouene/ Jayjo Jo ajebalbby
‘saoud
10BIU0D pajeljobau-al 0} anp paonpal aAey
Jey siojesadQ sng o) sjuswhed Apisqng sng|(G50°0)  [(S50°0)  [Liv'L 99| uonepodsues|
‘Wie|0 B 0} uoljeldd ul sialnsu| s,|lounod
8y} 0} apew aq o} JuawAed ssaoxa |eljuajod
8y} Joj papnjoul s! %093 JO JUSWHWWOD v
*$2JNS0[0 peod B (saiuedwod Aypn Aq Jiedas
1o spsepuels Buinosdw) uo paseq) S,Nd- saoIniag Aloyejnbay
10} 8wWodul Jo S|aA9| pajedanue uey) Jamo1(980°0 €800 9680 €180 B |04juo) Juawdojeaag sAemuybiH
sbuineg Aoueoen J1oN|(660'0)  |(860°0)  |0EV'0 8250 juswdojenaq @ Jessy Auadoid
-
(q]
swweJboud Juswabeuew d
19sSe Ypm aulj ui A1essadau m
s196pnq ayis Jo malnay sabieyo YANN pajediojue ueyy JamoTf(Ly0'0)  [(LZ£0°0)  [910°0 £80°0 sbuipjoH Auadold Q
"0L pouad e s)js0d ¥ANN pue
SalljIjin [euonippe pue sjeJayje je awooul
|ejual Jo ss07 ‘{L/E10¢ Ul spew ag mou
pinoys ‘1.0z Ae w1 anp 40023 Jo Jemod
apisaa( 0} m:_um_m._ awodul 10§ :o_w_>oL_Q e
‘v1/EL0Z|1BY) ‘UonEpUaWIWOIaI 8210 HPNY SS_AA BU)
Sor_mso._rz paJoliuow >_®wo_o >n ]9SO uUa22aq aAey o__oEOQ ale}sy jeuisnpuj
awooul [ejual Jun dasy| 8y} sSoJoe Sjieploys awoou) Jau pajewnsl|(€20'0)  [(#200)  |(oee’l)  [(9sz'L) sjun leuisnpuj
(ogL0) |(sLL0) 916'S 1609 uopepodsues | @ s}assy
(w3) (w3) (wz) (w3)
0l pousd wnyno | 19bpng
inbe
paai ¥y uonoy aosueleA Jo asne) aouelEA asueuep peyosfoid | pesiney L ITNETS
(11 YyuoW) v1/€10Z Bunoyuo 326png
€ XION3ddV AN3WNOJIANIT



2200 2£0°0 9¢.L'0 $0L°0 uonelauabay
sbuineg Aoueoep 19N|(€€00)  |(G200) 9612 122’2 saoueleA Jayjo jo ajebalibby
‘wes| juswaolojugy
Aajes g yjieaH ayj Aq sJed AepijoH
yled aloeje] jo uoindasold |njssaons
ay) Bumoyjo} pieme s)so9 UnoY e sepnjoul|(6e0'0)  |(8¥0°0)  |S6L°L eVl uolajo.d Ajunwwo)
(zLo0)  [(c200) [16€°E oY 'C uona9joid dliqnd
‘saljdoyine Bunogubiau mw_
0} ao1Ape Buiuued isifeloads Joj awooul
abJeyoau yjeis pue sbuineg Aoueoep 1oN| (L0 0) (£v0°0) LLE'L $SE°L saouele/ Jayjo jo ajebalbby MW
pus Q
paJojiuow Ajesod aq| JeaA [eroueuly o} dn sjaAs| uonesidde Jayun;
[m yoiym awooul as) buuueld 0} 103[gns sjaAd] ‘|| poliad Ul paAigdal
paseauoul Joy [eiuajod Jayund| awooul 99} Buuueld |enjoe ul Juawasow oN|(100°0) L1000 ¥9€°0 €9€°0 josuo) bBujuue|d
(s0'0) [(2v0°0) |S.9°L LLL'L Buiuue|d
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
01 poliad wnyno | jebpng
paJinbay uoijoy aJuelBA JO asne) soueLEA aoueleA pejoofoid | pasiney LTV ETS
(11 Yuo) v1/€1L0Z Buiojiuol 196png
€ XIGN3ddV LINIWNOUIANT



cL00 0S0°0 cieee c9cee ‘el
"6 POllad 1B paAowWwal pud JeaA |ejoueul)
0) sjuawiwwod Aoueoea ayoads 'syabpng
$90IA9S pue saliddns uo sjusWHWWOoD
paonpaJ pue uoljejuswajdwi malnal aouew.lopad
9oInJes Jo peaye sBuineg Aouedep 1aN|(€20°0)  [(€20°0)  |€SO°L 9.0l ¥ poddng juswabeuey
(¢z0'0) [(ezo0'0) €50°} 9.0} aduewiopad ' woddng Juawabeuep
sjuana Buipooy} Jajuim Jo 1800 pasealdu}|9z0 0 6000 ¥56'8 Sv6'8 saoueLeA Jay)o jo ajebalbby
‘pajeaipul suojoafoud snonald ueyy pasin
Bulaq jes 300y ssaj ul Buynsal Alenigay
pue Aienuep ybnouy) Jayyeam Jajuim Jap|iw
0} 8Np doUBUSJUIBIN JBJUIAA JO 1SOD padNpay|000°0 (050'0) 6v6°0 666°0 aoueusjulelN JoUIM
o
‘Jueid Juswieal) ajeyoes) o
ay} 1e Ajoded paonpal 0} anp %G| 3 JO awooul Q
Buuojuow ajeyoes| pajdadxa Ui uolonpay mwu
X513 a
1ses| Je Jo |jejoys Buipuny e ui Buynsai 9%,g
psemuo) Buiob| o0} dn Ag Jesi-ul paanpal uaaq sey (ONMS)
d41IN uo 1pedw Japisuo)| juels) juswabeuepy a)SEAA 9|geuiRlSNS a3y |
"ajsem uiyum uonebnsanul buiob
-UO 3y} Jo ynsal e se s}sod Buipoeq yeis
0GF JO Uol}ONPal SWOJUI Pajew}sa ue ul
Bunnsal Jaqwaldag pue Ainp uaam}aq auuo}
J4ad 0013 Aq paonpau saolud Buijphoay ouseid|yie 0 CcLE0 8€9°6 992°6 uoljo9||0) 8lsep @ [esodsiq ajsep
0.£0 LEE0 LS 6l 0LZ’61 auUads)edNs
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
T Y] (TATV S 0L polied wnyno | 18bpng
paijnbay uonoy aJueleA JO asnen eoUBLIEA ajuelep peyosfoid | pasiney RN T
(11 wuol) vL/€10Z Buiioyiuol yebpng
€ XION3ddv INIINNOHIANT



Page 34



Sa0UBLIBA JOUIN
(ainssaud

wi2Z0'03F) SIo0Yyas |e12adg @ Sa2IAI9g uoisn|du|

SL0°0

2200

6LEEL

c62¢cl

sjooyog |e1oadg

9 SBOIAIDS UOISN|OU|

‘MIIADY 19SSy

pUB 81jud) J0BJUOY) BINSIDT ‘MBIASY 8JIAIBS
2InsIaT ‘adiysiull4 wWims Jo uonessad Buipnjoul
pajuawa|dwi pue pasojdxa Bulaq aie suonnjos
JO JaquINU B Ue|d UOIPY ainsia ay) jo Jed sy

“Apisgns
alIysjull4 ay) uo pjoy e aoe|d o} sobeuey 801AIBS

"SaouBlEeA JouIWw

0} ssleal Wez( 03 Bululewas ay| “(sao1nas Aunoss
0} S9Je|a1 YoIyMm JO W/ 03) SeoiAIas pue saj|ddns
uo sainssald 0] salejal WZGQ'0F 'SIs02 sasiwald

0] 9)ejaJ W |90 0F JO saunssald "SaJjuad ssoloe
3wooul uo sainssald 0} sajejas WOEE 03 "SaJjuad
SS0J0E §)S00 Alejes paonpal 0} sajejal WG90 03

jo Bunes y "¢ 1.0¢ 1snbny ui pasead swwesboid

SIY) ‘2JIYSIUI4 WIMS 0} S8je|al w9z 03 Jo aJnssald v
(aunssaud wgey 03) $991A19G 3INS|37

SaouBleA JOUIN
(Buiaes wigL 0 03) 26ejdy @ aamn) ‘saueiqi

‘ao1neg Aeaq

|O0YOS 3y} Ul ainypuadxa aonpaJ 0} uave) aq ||Im
sainseaw Jo Jaqunu e ‘awwelboid Asuow 1o} anjea
ay) SpJemo) 8)NguIuod 0) pue puadsianc ajeloal(d
ay) aiebiniw o} ‘| Na e wawaalbe ue Buimojjo4
(Buines wgpl°03) 231M18g Aieiq) |0oydg

£9¢°0

1LE€0

0849

991°'9

ainsia g aINyn)

paiinbay uonoy

@auelieA Jo asne)

(w3)
Yuop 3se

aaueleA

(w3)
asuelep

(w3z)
wnyno

pajaafoid

(w3z)
1e6png

pasinoy

LTIV

¥ XiAN3IddVv

ONINYVYIT ONOTIANT

(L1 pouad) v1/c10Z Bunoyuop 1ebpng

Page 35



(zoL'0) (851°0) 918CLL vL6°ZLL ‘lejol
saouBLBA JOUIN
(Buiaes wiggp'03) Hoddng ssauisng @ juswabeuely
SaoUBLIBA JOUIN
(Buiaes wgg('03) sadlalag sanijidey
‘WwgQQ 03 JO S8ouUBLIBA
Joujw Jayjo pue (w/py0'03) @auelnsu| (W9e0'03)
swooisse|D 9iqoN uo sbBuiaes pajewisa Aq 19sH0
u9aq aAeY (suolssiway oIsnpy pue sdu] |00YdS ‘s|eay
jooyog aau4) poddng jidnd uo wi QL 03 JO SAINSSaId
(Buines wigyo'03) siun adiALRS
* 10| S|00Y0S Ui ainyipuadxa papiuwoaun
|le uo pjoy e aoe|d 0} uoisioap ay} apew asey | NG
‘awwelBoid Asuow 1oj anjea ay) SpJemo) anNguIuod
‘101 S100YoS uIyIm 1aBpng ayl| o1 pue puadsiano ajeloloalI] BY) 8oNPaJ O} HOYS Ue U]
JO wQGL 03 uo pjoy e aoe(d o} Jabeuepy ad1n8S (Buiaes wiggL 03) LII SIo0Yas
196pnq G/ @Y} Ul papnjoul ‘saoueLIeA JOUIN $30.n0S9Yy
usaq aAey 91D PUe ddAD 0l Bunead saiousiiy] (Buines wip'03) ANUNWWOY B YINOA ‘uaip|iyaf(9,z°0) (€1£°0) 9z121 BEY CL %3 JuswdojeasQ
SaouelBA JOUIN Sa0IAMBg
(Buines wQL0'03F) S@21AI9G |00Yag Aiepuodag((y100) (010°0) 061 LE 00G' L€ |ooyog Aepuodag
ebpnq
Sl/bL ®Yi Ul papnjoul usaq aAey Saiduslol]
‘sBuipes
woJy saoe|d pajew s 10} UOI08a||00 pue Ssajel "aWooul S |00Yo2S uo sbulaes Joujw o) saje(d.
yuig apn|oul 0} sjuawaoe|d 10} SBIBWINSS BINyN} wgoo'03 1ebpnq uswsapnul Ape] ay) ul sbunles
UO >Jom Jayuny Jno ALied 0} Jobeuew 8o1A8G | PAUIBIUIEW UOU PUE paulBjulew Ui sjuswaoe|d p|o Jesk
¢ uo sBuines 0} sajejas wggl 03 siebpng saoinues pue
‘Jue.b aseyd uonepunod ayy| salddns uo ainypuadxa uo S|01U0D 0} SB)ejal WOE0 03 S30IMBS
jo abesn pauueld uo uoewIoul Jayuny Buglemy (Buiaes w9/ |"03F) Se21A198 |ooyag Asewnid|(061 0) (921°0) LOLEY 11TV jooyos Alewid
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3z)
2nbaxiuons Yuow ise winynQO jabpng
paJinbay uonay aaueleA Jo asne) eI aoueuep peraeloIY Sosinas LITNET

¥ XiANIddV

ONINYVIT ONOTIAIN

(11 pouad) vL/€1L0z Bunoyuow 196png

Page 36



GLvL0C

Joj Buipuny S 19 UO UOISSNISIP [eUOiieU
0} Bupgnquyuon “Budojuow Buiobuo

0} 103(gns Inq 821AI8S pPd| puewa(

‘aJemyos Buioinos
ul sAejap anp juswdinba ]| jo aseyaind

1509 JBaA Ul pajewiise

0} paiedwod Buipuny Ul j[BJUOYS SY LD WLLE0F
(yuadsun ulewsau [jm 3JeMmyos O}

pajeoo|je WG| 1'03) 196pnq ¢L/EL0T Ul pRjedoje
S1S02 WGOE 03 2y Buneaw Jaye pung uonosiiod
xe| [1ounod ay) uo snidins jou (WeZg 03)
syuswiAedianQ syyauag BuisnoH

JO UONI3[|0 WioJ) SWOdUI [BUOKIPPE (W090°03)
a|yoid Apisgng yauag Buisnoy

10 MalAB) pue paau (dHQ) Juswhed BuisnoH
AJeuonauosi( 1@aw o) palsinbal Buipuny Jo |8A3] a4}
10 maina) Buimoljoy Aouaioiye Jeah ul (w8 03)
196pnq jo juawubijjeal

8y} punj o} %013 piemio) Aueo o} Jsenbay Bumoyjo} sBuiaes Aouedep 1au (wapL 03){(280°L) (6€0°L) 9gL'¢l Gz vl aoueuly
saoueleA Joulw (wyg0°03)
$1S02
Jeak urjasyo 0} Juels) gs140 asn (wpyzo'03)
suole@y
21|gnd Pue uone)nsuo) Bulpnioul SOIoUBIDIYS
suoleoiunwwo?) ajesodio) (wzzo'03F)
‘sAe|ap 19aloid 0} anp 1sloid sBuines Aouedep (w1L60°03)
aAneloge||o) Bujuuejq Acusbiaw3 yiodiabueq oy

3y} 10} Y| 3 paemioy Aueo 0} jsanbay| uonNqUIUOD Jojoss Alejunjoa sjeiodio) wgLo'03((/80°0) (ez1°0) 08LC £0€'2 aAnoax3 JaIyd

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
yjuopy 3se wnpngo jabpng
paiinbay uoyoy aouBlIBA JO asne’ asuepEA asueleA paosfold pasiAay LT TS

G xipuaddy

S3DIAYIS FLVHOJHOO

(11 WuoW) ¥L/€1L0z Buuoyuop 186png

Page 37



(2ve°L) (ose’L) 06.'S2 ovL.z lleol
paieooje Aisnoinaid Buipuny Aspjong
S}o8UU0D adIysjull] O} paJedo|[e YGCT -
‘GL/pL Ul S)s02 Buyels
$108UU0Y) BJIYSIUl| JOA0D O} 462 LT »
abewep Jayjeam
Ua9sIoJuUN Z a1jua) Ble( Ul SHUN UoDIly
pabewep jo Juawaoe|dal 8y} O NZ L3 -
‘GL/pL Ul SfUSWHWWOD
poddns o} yun Juud [eyBig ay) 1o} %23 -
“(186pnq DD Jou a21Mes |euoibal
e poddns o} puny joaloud jeuoibau)
108lo1d auQ epdeD ay) 1o} %263 saoueLeA Joulw (w.00°03)
“1oafoid AGHT JO UOIONPOAUL B YIM puadsiapun ABajens 10| (wyzo'03)
payul| Aejop e 0} anp ygSd 40} Y9623 awioou| ssensibay |euonippe (wiL0'03)
‘sjunowe sBuines Aoueoep (wgLo 03) S9oINeS
Buimoljoy ayy paemioj Aued o) Jsanbay s)s09 abejsod wsy0'03/(020°0) (810°0) 0£0'G 8+0'G Jawoysn)d B LI
"awayos ay) puny
0} aNUNUOD 0} G|/ L0Z Ul paJInbal aq M
yoiym 3abpnq asules ] aaysiuli4 45.23F » saoueLEA Joulw (WLL0°03)
109load ui shejep suopesiuebio
- a1emyos sgq jo aseyound ayl 1o} 4QLF » [BUIBIX3 WiOJ) BWODUI JO SSO| WYED 03 juswdojaaaQg
:sjunowe sBuiaes Aoueodep (wQzZo 03F) [euonesiuebiO
Bumojjoy ay) psemuoy Aueo 0 3sanbay aunyipuadxa 3o0ayD sgQa paonpal (wszo'03)|(€L00) (220°0) 0ov'¢ (44X $802Jn0say uewnH
saoueLeA Jouiw (W 200'0F)
asemyos Buioinos ainyipuadxa
ul sAejap 0} anp aiemyos |eba mau suonduosgng |e6a7 paonpal (Wz10°03)
40 uone||ejsul pue aseyaund ay) J0) HOEF » (-018 |aneyy ‘Buiutesy
a)9|dwoour yJom ‘uonniisuos |oul) puadsiapun saoUBMO||Y SJaQUIBIN {wze0'03)
S,|IoUN0) 34} JO UOHEB(SURS) BU} JOS HOLF » puadsiapun sadiAIeS SIBqWB (WEZ0'03)
sjunowe sabieyoal pue swnoo/Aousby Jo Sa0INBS
Buimo||o} ay) piemuo} Aued o} }sanbayy| asn ayy Buipnioul sBuiaes foueoep 18u (WL 03 |(StL 0) (gt1L°0) v66°2 rL'e onesoowsa % jeba
(w3) (ws3) (w3) (w3)
Yyjuopy i3se wnpno joBpng
pasinbay uonoy aoueleA JO asne) ooUELIEA aJueBA pejae(oly pesiey ERITVETS

G XIpuaddy

S3DIAYES 31VH0dH0D

(L1 Yuow) v L/€ L0z Buuoyuop 1ebpng

Page 38



alis }josoApues

Buuojuow Ajyyuow Bulobug| ¢L/€10Z 40} PaSIASI USSq SARY S]SOD psjewiiss| 0070 00€'0 00€0 0000 - P11 s|eong Jawuo4
saoIneg poddng “WoH 8y} pue sjunodoe Buipel} wouj sableyoay
JO M3IABI ||BIBAO UE 0} }03[gNS | paiaA0da. SWOJU) [BuJsiul JO WL LE'0F JO |lefioys) LLE'D LLED (0z9'1) (LE6'L) 80IAlBG [eaua]
(W L0 03F-) Se2oUBLIEA JOUIW
Jayio(abexoed dwy sdaig isd14) (W6 L 03) WDl
llejpuim ajesodiod jo Aanodal Jano (WgyzZ 03
-) ABajess Jeak 9.y} jo Jeak [euy - J101Bp punj
uoisuad pajabpng jo aleys D4 jo A1anodas uo
snjding (WgSG 03-) Juswabeue ainsio ‘WGl L3
196png |1Puno?d GL/71.02 40 $90IAJ9S AIUnwWiWwon)) podas € YUo sy} ul SU0ISINO.-
Jed se paiapisuod a.e s1ebpng| paaoidde se (wpgg'03) Jo syuawysnipe jebpngian|(2oLL)  [(ZE1°1) 082€ Liv'y PieH Allesuag
"ainssald j96pnq seah Jualnd e ul Buiynsal
‘%06 Si 8Jeys a.ysiull4 8y} yoiym Joj (woL L 03
BO.1D aN[eA Ajjuadind) €1/210¢ Jeah jeloueuly
0) Bujuieuad s89210AUl JO JAQqWINU Juediiubis
puads Jeak u| uo uayeuapun e ssa20.d 0} Buinuijuod aie HgoH Weyxaipn
pounon Alunod adiysybiquag|  1ey) uonuape ano o} Jybnouq usaqg sey il (€102
yum Buuojuow Jenbay|  Aepy wolj aAi0aY8) uoisinoid 821AISS SIBU0I0D)
‘Buiunoal uou s| puadsiang Jo} Ajdoyne pes| ay} ul abueyds e o} ang| S50°0 G500 8v20 €610 $J8U010D)
"‘ABajens ‘aAnelU| Buimoliog JUSWUISAOL)
uawsabeuep Auinseal [E207] UO 4y @pn|dul 0} uonenoied (4HN) JUNOJY JUBLWIISAAU|
Ujim aulj uj Jojluoul 0} anuijuod UOISINO.d SNUBASY WNWIUIN Y} JO MaIASY [(£92°0) (€92°0) 020'Sl £8C'GlL '® SUBOT [ELJUBD
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3z)
Yjuow
paiinbay uonoy 9oUBLIEA JO dsSne) jseq aoueLieA SN0 jobpng pasiaay 90IAI9g
aouellep peosfoid

9 XIdN3ddV

JONVNId 31VHOd¥0I ANV TVILNID

(11 pouad) v1/€ 10z Butioyuoyy 1e6png

Page 39



(90s'0) |(6vs0)  [961°22 €v9°L2 ‘lejoL
ajebalbbe
(r€0°0) (0200) 12001 Ly0'0L - S3duelleA JayiQ
"SaAeiui Jeak
Ui JO }jNSal B SE PaAlIYDE Uaaq SABY S3IDUSIDIYS
‘S1/710Z | [euonippe o (w/90°03) swwe.bold juswainaoid
$3I0UBIDIYS Jayuny poddns |im -aoe|d u| ale sajis S}o’uuo)
sauoba)eo puads Jo abuajeyo aJIYsjuli|4 JO YJOMJBU JaPIM BY} pUE paduBApe
panuijuoy) ‘SaIouUBIILe sey swweiboud ayj [yun pasiieal aq jou jim
Buisiieas Joy ABojopoyiaw |  saoUBIRIYS JO WG/ 0F dwwelboid Jawoisny
ay) ssasse pue ssalboid "iouno) 8y} ssouoe juswabeuew saijjioe)
mainas 0} Ajoys aoejd|  1OS pue pley Jo malaal [N} 8y} Ul shejep 0} enp
aye} 0} anp s| doysxIop V| paasiyoe aq jou |m wyso 0F dwwelbold sjessy| 290°0 0800 LEL0 (150°0) salning alysjull4
‘uoljisod ajep 0} dn
S1/y102 ui yoedwi| ay) sjoajial uooaloid asueleA syl pue /g L0z Ul
ay} Japisuod 0} usyeuapun]| pasealosp sey abesn Aousby ‘uayeuspun usaq
aq 0} sisAjeue Jayun4| sey joeiuo) Xuiei 8y} uo ajeqal ayj Jo Melnal | GZL°0 GZL0 (061°0) (51€°0) JOBJUOD XU SSEN
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yjuop
paiinbay uonoy 2JueLIBA JO 9sne) jseT ajueleA HINRNoO job6png pasinay 90IAI8S
asuelep pajsfoid

9 XION3ddVv

JONVNIH 3LVAOdH0D ANV TVHLINID

(11 pouad) p1/€10Z Bunoyuoy 3ebpng

Page 40



APPENDIX 7

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2013

Less - Base Level (inclusive of total increase
of £0.270m agreed as part of the 2013/14
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1°
March for funding of one-off costs in the
2013/14 budget proposals

Less - Amount approved by Cabinet on 16"
July for reinstatement of funding within the
Winter Maintenance reserve following
utilisation of funding during 2012/13 (late
March severe weather event)

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at 31%' March
2014

Less - Actual severe weather recovery costs

Projected Level of Total Contingency
Reserve as at 31% March 2014

Page 41

£m

9.540

(5.834)

£m

3.706

(0.297)

(0.250)

3.159

2.215

(0.473)

4.901



Page 42



(680°0) (L21°0) 92¢'0 L6V°0 1|ejo)
(s1eba1668E)
(100°0) 1100 08€'8 GLE'8 S@0UBLIEA J3YI0

‘seale ||e Jano wgzo 03 Jo sbuines Aiejeg
'S)20|q a)jauos|ew Uo WSO 03

Buiaes joesuod Buiuesjo Jo uopejjaoue)d
"awiayos Junoasip

pJiq Aea 0} anp awodul JO WyE0 03
1ayun} e pajelauab Uo|SSILIWOD JBJe A
"9LU0duUl WEL0'0F JBYuny

e Buiessusb sabieyoal aouesead PIOA
‘wges0'03

JO Junowe Ul paaiadal buiusalos

10} JuawasINquiia. Juawaindo.d (61 0) (181°0) 1291 2s8’l sajejs3 buisnoy

Jeak
ui Juads Ajjny Buiaq jou }abpnqg spauosie
0} anp WG| 0’03 Jo} Isenbau piemuo) Aied
'GL/10Z ul paseyaund aq |Im Ing ¥L/ELOZ

ul Buisijelialew Jou S)SO2 SIBMYOS
0} anp wggQ 0F Joj }senbaus piemioy Aied

w |z 03 Buines ‘saunby

€1/21 02 1e p8ejoajjal pue pamainal

JUSWasINgIBI-UOU WIE|D 3oUeINSU|

‘Buines Buneaio pajedionue uey)

JaMO| W8N 03 SIS0 UlesS pund uoisuad

‘pajsanbal uaaq sey ¥1/£102

uo uoneuLol| WO 03 Bulnes ‘sjenjoe

€1/2102 e pajoayal sabieyosy Hoddng|i(gez'0) (evz'0) ey’ 969'C yoddng ® soueul
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)

Yyjuop ise wnjnQ jobpng

aoueleA
aoueLeA pajosfoid pasiney

pasinbay uonoy 8oUBLIBA JO 9ShEe) 80IAI9G

g xipuaddy JUNO022Y anuaAady BuisnoH (11 Yuol) vi/c1L0zZ Buoyuoy 336png

Page 43



"Bale SIY)

Ul puads 10}oeJUOIGNS JO [9AS)
ay) aonpad [jim yoiym saipadosd
PIOA Ul suofiejjejsul uayoyy
ayeuapun o) pajeald buieq

S| Wea} uayoypy| asnoy-uj uy
‘Juawabuele

diysisuped ay) ybnouayy
paseyaund bujaq sjeusiew

JO aWN|OA 3y} 0} aNp suoponpal
aoud uo suplad Sineld]

yim Ajaso(o Bupjiom si wes |

‘saipadoud pioa uo syIom

Jolew pue ¢10g Aenigag ul abewep puim
ybiy Juadal ‘g0z UDJE\ Ul SUOIPIPUOD
Jayjeam asJanpe 0} anp wgoz 03

0 puadsiano Jojoesjuoagns paasby

‘yyuows snoinaid wouy suoyosfoud

puads anuaAaJ ay} ul uojonpal e ul
Bunnsas spioA Ul usyeuspun buiaqg syom
Jolew pajediogue ay) ul aseasou| WesL 03
"aoe|d Ul 9zaalj Jusu}inioal

pue salouedeA wua) buoj o) anp saueles

aouBUSUIB

juswabeueyy Jossy bBuisnoy uo 3ouelEA puads Japun Jau wgs L 03(S9E 0 GGZ0 298 £6€'8 pue sJieday
wgGz 03 Jo buiaes e u) Bupnsal
S)s00 pajoadxa mainal pue ‘, Xe} wooupaq, jo 1oeduw Jjapenb Jsiiy
JXB] Wo0.pag, jO joedw JOUOK| U0 paseq pamairal uoisiroid 1gaq ped|(0LZ°0) (z0z°0) (8¥1°L2) (9v6°92) Sjuay
"ulnjal [eul4 @oUBAPY UO Paje[ndjed
WL€0"03 40 €£1/210Z uo juswAed
JBpUN "winjal SYHH pugZ ul uolsnpoul
10} sainby jeyden o} suswpuawe Jayundy
‘wea) Bujpueui |eliden ‘peya|dwod spunod }9b6pnq
ypm saunby Jo sbuiwi mainay | Joye papuawe sableyo buoueul [eyded (6810 68L°0 9G€9 291°9 Apisqns YyH
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
aJinbay uoo UIUOW 3587 Wnino jo6png
paiinbay uonoy aJuelIeA jJO asne) T asuelep pejsefoiy pesiAey CRITVETS

8 xipuaddy

JUN022Y anuaAay Buisnoy

(11 yiuoW) ¥1L/€1 02 Buioyuo 186png

Page 44



\¢ 9010 suonejuasald jo Bulwi] - SSaUSSaBWOH
\¢ 8200 sBuines Aouaioyg Buisnoy
\¢ 1200 MIIASY UONBASIUIWLPY 3210 |BI8USD
\» G10°0 VSO - 4els j0 Juawade|dal uop - Juswainay Aeg
\f 0v0°0 soonoeid Bunsixs Jo UOISIASL - WES ] Juswade|d Ajwe
\f Y00 $90IAI8G S,uBIpIYD - )S0d Bunsix3g Joj Buipund jeussix3
\¢ £50°0 s|aAs| Ayianoe paonpal - sjybry paaiasald
\¢ 00L°0 2JED BJX3 JO [9A3| DY) U] JUSLWB|qESY
sagInIas Apunuwiio)
(92 XION3ddy) ebuey) edinieg
8L1°0 viol
\¢ 8L00 SIaS[) 20IBS Y)[BaH [Busy
‘Jow uasq sey Aouaidiys sy} j) Jeak jeueuly .
oL 10 PUB BU) [3UN 2NS 0 UMOLY 8G JOU [I1M)] \¢ 00L°0 puewaq woi4 awodu| paseasnu| - Buibiey) |enuapisay
$821MBS Ajunuwiwo)
(2 XION3IddY) seBieyd @ seey
nd
JI8VAIIHOVY 1dvd NI Q3AIIHOV 38 Q3aNn3IHOY
10N NI 318VAIIHOV Ol a3a103dx3 AQVY3HTY
AJN3IDI443 AON3IDId43 ADN3IDI443 ADN3IDId43
UOJIBLLLIOJUI JURAB|BS (w3z)
JaYjo Jo snjejs uopisod Jualind UORISO4 JUBLIND Kouaoyy uonduoaseq Aaus|oy3
poddns 0} uorjewsoul Jayuny pajabpng

J:__J__.____
gy

§ Xipueddy - SediAiag AUNwwo)

L1 YJuoiy

SepuddIPa

Page 45



0c0'0 sjuawase|d awn|oA
\¢ MO 1500 yB1y jo Juswainooid jeuoibal - QnH Juswaindold
\¢ G.0°0 saoInleg pue sajjddng - aue) |BI00S
\o €000 $301A19G pue saj|ddng - sadnies Buisnop
\¢ 0£0°0 Mmalnal ainypuadxa uonejuawaldul }sod - SIYYd
sa891nu8s Arunwiwo)
(9 XIGNIddv) wweweindoid
9S¥°0 violL

\r S00°0 21e2 Aep - 82IAI3S BJBD J9)S0) SANEJUSASLY

*120°03 jo puadsiano . R
e BuIMOUS AUBLING S1 WES) 1Sy SUL N 0100 uoyonpal 196png wea) | S - SAIAIBS S,UAIPIYD
\o SLO0 Aousioiya sjsoo podsuel] - S8JIAIBS S,U3IPIYD

‘1eak |eioueuly ay) Ul Jale| [Iun paAsiyoe
uaaq sey AuaIdiya SIy) JI UMOUY 3G JoU JIim \¢ 0L0°0 S19)S1Jeq / SI0)D1|0S JO as( - sead |ebaq
11 sea4 |eba jo aunjeu a|gejdIpaldun ay) 0} ang
\» 0L0°0 92IAI9S jInpe a)eudolddy - 800SN YINOA
1nd
J1GVAIIHOV lyvd NI G3AIIHOVY 39 a3an3iHOVY
1ON Ni 318VAIIHOV Ol g3103dx3 AQV3HIv
AON3IDI443 AON3IDI443 ADN3IDI443 AON3IOI443
uojjeiioju)] JURAS|aL (w3) . A
19Y}0 10 Sn)ejs uonduosag Aouajo
ay) snjejs uolysod jJuannd uoRISOd JUsLIND Kouapoiyy nal a 10143
uoddns o) uojewsojuy JBYUN4 pajabpng

Jnsugy
JULE A D

6 Xipuaddy - S821A1ag AJIUNUIo)

Ll yjuoly

sapuadyg
Bunoyuopy 1ebpng

Page 46



[esvo viol
. wea | Juswabeuepy
N 050°0 4O UONESI[EUONEY - S32IN0STY pue Juswdojanag
\r 000 1s0d Jabeuew Wes) auo JO |BAOWSY - SBJIAIBG S,UaIpiyd
\r 2100 90IA12G UBPIBAA JO MBIASY BOIAIBS
‘Buizis yybu
0 }|nNsal e se apew uaaq aney sbuines awog
‘ps1emuoy Buiob impoob yess Jo uohualal pue
'9WO02)N0 [NJSS3DINS B PAAIYIE UOKHE}INSUOD \¢ 0S€°0 ao1n18g Buia pauoddng jJo mainay
2AISUBIX® UY 10T |UdY WOy 3INjoNS
Mmau ay) Jo uojejuawsa|dw Jo Jnsal e se
'GL/77L.0Z WOy 3|qeAdIyde Ajny St ADuBIa18 By L
S$89IM8s Aunwio)
(PZ XIGNFddY) ubiseq euonesiuefio
1989°0 aviol
G200
\o S)OBIUOD PISIASI - MBIASY Hodsuel |
€£6°0
¥Z'03 Jo puadsiano ue Bumoys mou s| Jabpng
SIY) S8OURISWNDIID JBSN 82(AIBS Ul abueyd aonoesd Juswainooid|
0) anp JanamoH ‘(py£'0)3F Jo puadsiapun \¢ panoidwi - sjuawaae|d AJunod Jo N0 - SADIAIBS S,uUBIPIYD
ue Buimoys sem Jabpng siy) ¢ yjuow e sy
TN
I1EVAIIHOVY wavd oot | aanaimov
1ON NI I19VAIIHOV 0L a3103dx3 AQYIHTV
AON3IDI443 AON31O1443 AON3IDI443 AON3IDI443
UOJJBWIO}U} JUBAD|DS (w3)
19430 JO snje}s uolisod jJualing uopISOd JusLINg Aouapy3 uonduaseq Adusioly3
poddns 03 uoijewsojul sBYUN4 pajebpng

.,_::r.:.____ :
UTTERY Nynsd

6 xipuaddy - S89IA19S APUNWWO)

L1 Yjuo

sepusyg
Bunojuoyyebpng

Page 47



Page 48



(19917) aAneniu| Bumoliog JUSWUIBACY uonejuawaidwl Jn)
|B207 0} NP GL/pL0OZ PUE $L/€1L0Z Ul pannbal G20 ~ ) )
10U Sem jey) ainsseid pancidde SNojABId \¢ Jo Buiseydai- (JWVH) ueld uawabeuep jessy shemybiy
IIN} Ul paAsIyoe aq |m ADUBIOIS SiY) pue . ] 6 d _uou - Bunub
pajdope uaaq sey Aojod unybi 19eNg Mau By L \» 0S0°0 o-uiny JyBlupiw 1sod seale |enuapISal-ucu - bunyol 1I9as
JuswuonAug
(9 X1ONIddv) abueyd asjaleg
jovL°0 aviol
vL/ELOT ut1dw : Buissaooid ajeyoes) - sUsIS)aa!L
aq |m Jobie) awooul mau ay) jey) pajedionue S| j) \¢ 5§00 10 S1EUIe3| jeans
196png Adiod ; sa0ljoN Japio uoljenbay oes
sAemybBiH uiyIm wWoyy 1Bw uoljonpay jabpng \» €100 ON [ NEIDSY JelL
‘uoisod ds 8 SES1UI - BIIAIBS SISNJE|
awodu snidins e Buiyodas A)juaiind s)aylen \¢ 6100 SIEES SHEHSIES ! YOS SIMHEN
ELOZ BUNF 15| WOl PISEIOUI 813M STOINISS \¢ G200 sajel |9)Jew 0} 3SEaldul - UOHIBI0Id dignd
Juswaaealag pue Buisuadl] Yjog Joj sea4
‘uoisod awosul . a ein}noLb
snjdins e Burpodal A\uaind SIS [ein)nouby \¢ 800°0 SiEjUa. 81=1eT [EININADY
JuswiuoNAug
(e£ XIGNIddYy) sebiey) g sead
1nd
JIGVAIIHOV 14vd NI Q3A3IHOV 36 Q3aNAIIHOVY
10N NI 318YAIIHOV 0L 3103dX3 AQY3HIVY
AONZIOI44d AON3IOI443 AONIDI443 AON3IDI443
uopjewniojuy (w3)
JUBA3J3J JBY}0 1O Shjes uopisod DonIeoLhLIsAND Roualog uopduosaq Asuaoly3
juaund poddns 0} uojjewnou J8yung payabpng

AISIL

JUTE A 21,

6 Xjpuaddy - JuaWUOIIAU]

L1 yyuoy

SapuaPg

Bunojuopy 18bpng

Page 49



. Japua}-al PUe SJOBIUOD 3INIBS
186pnq BoInIBs UlyIM Pagiosqe Aduaiow3 \» 9€0°0 SNg pasIpISqNS JO MY - SBIIAIBS uonepodsuel |
Mmou aJe pue ssadoud Japud) e Jo Jed se MHMS_M_ \r 0S0°0 esodsip
SEM 10} sjuawabuelie podsuelj Japua] - S8JIAIBS 3)Se
uaaq aAey sjuawabuene podsuelf MaN o ) Siusw Hodsuely JapusL S SISeM
Juawuosaug
(92 XIGNFddv) uswainooid
8L'0 aviol
A2uaio1§3 S1Y) JO JUBWAABIYDE 800°0 sassao0ud Juaund sujweans - Aisuonels
Sajediput ¢ pouad je uolisod Buuojuop 196png \r pue sajiddng - asueWIONad P Woddng ajelooaiQg
Aouaioiya siy) Jo JuswaA3Iyoe : sjuawAed abeajiw paonpai - |9AR) JJe
$3)e2IpUl  pouad Je uollisod Buuojiuop 196png \¢ €000 e s pRanp : 1HEIS
“Aouaiaiya sy} 0 JUBWaABHE : Buniiom a)ibe - wea) juawdojaaaq ssauisn
S3)EIIpUI § POUad 18 uoiisod Buuonuopy 18bpng \¢ ¥00'0 B " " 19r8d 8
"aAI9s3) Snjels
a)buis ay) woyy Jow Buiag si ejuoys vL/EL0Z ) uooaYIod Aepinies
UL S1/pLOZ Ul PAA3IYOE Bq ) pajediouel A ovL0 40 JN0 1103 1N} WO} SBUIABS B|2IYSA - SBIAIBS BISEM
sl 0s snjes ajbuig jo uongjuaws|dwi y) uo
Juepuadap s1 A2usID1Y8 SIU) JO JUBSWSABIYIE BY |
'9AIBS31 SNIBIS
91buis au) wouy 18w Butag s) (f_juUoYS p1L/ELOZ
ayl 'Si/yL0zZ ul paAaiyoe aq o) pajedionue \¢ 00€°0 Juswsalbe ||| Yed Jo uonejuswsaidw - 3uadsisals
s1 0s snje)g abuis jo uoneyuawsalduwi ay} uo
yuepuadap st AQUBID1Y3 SIY) JO JuaWBABIYIE BY |
“Kiov s11z3 Aq Aouaoe
3U) U0 JUBWaA3IYIE Japun pue A1essadsu
uonejnsuod Buiobuo Yim paletep Jsyun)y \¢ 0S0°0 ABa)eJ)s JO JISIAB) - S8DUBIUSALIOD 2|aNd
usaq aAeY sAMISED puB UIBDH) pue g0z Iudy
YI0€ Inun 8s0jo 1,upIp ||IaMAIOH ‘SUBPIBS) JaMO |
1
J1GYATIHOVY 14vd NI a3 >W____.__“_o< 39 J3aA3IHOVY
v
10N NI 3T18VAIIHOV Ol a3L03dx3 AQv3d
AON3I0I1443 AON3IDI443 ADONTIOI44T AON3IDI443
uonewIoul (w3z)
JuBA8jal JaYJ0 Jo smejs uopisod uoRISOd Juaing Kouaoiyg uopduosaq Adusidyg
juaund poddns 0} uoyewsojul JaYUNY E pajebpng

YSIL

JUL A 1

§ Xipuaddy - JuaWuo|AUT

LL yuoiy

Sapuaoy
ulIo)IuoHy 3abpng

Page 50



500 aviol

2ays aouele
JUSWUONAUT 3Y) Ul 3oueleg Qm._o“uw“h_m_ oc_om_am \¢ 5200 paunbay jou 83Ueleq - Aidjes @ YiIeaH / buisusor]

}asyg aouejeg .
JUBWIUOIIAUT BY) Ul BouUB|eg djelojoal() dIioads \r 5c00 paAnba) Jou Soueleq - Sajeis3 eiminolby

Juawuonauy
(32 XIGN3IddV) sajpueldiyl 18yl

020°0 aviol

awwelbosy

lbLie 102 105 wieyD Juels i1sa14 seuNWwWo) ay) jo .
\¢ 0200 18414 sanunwwo) ay) o} abieyday Juswabeue malray

Wed se paAsiyde aq M Sy} 1ey) pajediojue st |

JUBLILOHAUT
(P2 XIGN3ddv) ubisaq [euonesiuebio

lrrio IvioL
196png ad1Aas uIym pagiosqge Aousiog \¢ 0200 yoddng 8je10)2a11g UIYIM S85S820.d JUBLIND BUIjWeBNS
186pnq so1n8s uIym paquosqge Aauaidiyy \» G200 puads ajgesuanjjui ul uondNPaYy
186png 8a1A13s uIYIMm paqiosqe Aouaioiy3 \» €100 SIUBYNSUOD JO SN U] UONINPaY
318VAIIHOV wva oo | aanamov
10N NI 378YAIIHOV Ol 3193dX3 AQV3IHTVY
AON3IOI443 AON3IDI443 AONZIDI443 AON3IDI443
uoewIOuI (w3) : e
jueA?|al J8Y30 40 snjeys uopisod Aouadiyg uopdudsag Adusidiyg
juaund poddns 0} uonewIOUl JBYUNY LG pajyebpng

L1 Yuoiy

E:Z::._l- SapuspPIg
JUIE A, & Xipuaddy - JUSWIUGIIAUS Buiionuop1abpng

Page 51



Page 52



S YINOA uo aunssaid
e ajedionue Jou op apn siseq Buiunoss e uo
Mo|jaq WSO 03 ay) Jo Led Bujuieyas Aq Abajens . )
YINOA 8U) Jo Ped Se PassaIppe Uaaq Sey YAIUM \r €00 SJOMJOM BIJE JOIUSS JO UONONPSI - BOIAIBS YINOA
mey) 196png e pajeald Aouaioye siyL ‘pasnpal
uaaq A)lsnoinaid pey siayiom eale Joj 196png 8y
\» 5200 $812U9121))8 |euoneladO
buiwiea buojaji]
(92 X1ON3ddYy) abuey) adjniag
20270 aviol
awn s} e 18bpng
Jodsuel} ay) uo ainssasd e ajediofue jou
Op oM 'JBABMOH SIY} wiyuod 0} Buiobuo Si IO d
‘paAaIyoe 8q ued Aouaidiya ay) Jo woLo 03 Aluo \r 0€00 nwiy soue)sip 94 1sod Jo mainay
1ey) sueaw euque) 63yj00 o} yodsues) apiaoud
0) anunjuoad 0} jesodo.d ay) 0} JUBWPUSWE 3Y ]
‘wy9L 03
2|QeAsiyoe JUNOWe pajewlisy "paAaiyoe An)
aq 0} 4121} 1ou Osje S| AouaIlyya ay) ‘Jew aq o) \¢ G210 sabieys pasealoul - S9IAIBS aINSIaT
pajoadxa jou ale s)abie) swooul se yng pasibe
se Ailenuef is| dy) U0 pPasEdIOUl aJ1aMm SYIIe |
\¢ 1000 asealou sableyo anH - Aeiq
\» 1000 sauld - 8an9g Areaqi
bunirea buoyay]
(2 XIGONFddY) sabiey) g seag
1nd
J1aVAIIHOV 1¥vd NI 3AIIHOV 38 A3A3IHOVY
10N NI 379VAIIHOVY OL Q3L03dX3 AQY3IHTVY
10144 AD 1443 AON3IOI443
AON3IDI443 N30 ADNIIDI443
uopewoju) (w3z)
ueA uopduosag Aoued
jueA8jal J8YJ0 10 snje}s uopisod UORISOd JUaLIND Aouaoy3 nai ad 19143
juaLNnd pyoddns 0) uoyeuioyu] JaYuN4 payabpng

AN
JUBLL A A g

L1 Yuoiy

SapuaPyg

uLIojIuoH yobpng

Page 53



Z6L°0 IviOoL

\¢ Y00 aiNjornJisay wes] juswabeuep 8jes0108.41Q
\» €200 Apisqns Builims JO [BAOWSI - SBDIAIBG INSIDT
‘swi) sty je 126png
101 sjooyas ay) uo ainssaid e ajeddpue jou op 5z0'0 uoNNpal 1S0d - M3IASI B9IAIBS WUBU) - 1) 11

M MBIARY 1 D) 91B10dI0D) BY) Yim pauiquiod \r
u28Q MOU SBY M3IASY 20IAIBS | | SI00YIS By

‘apew
uaaq a3k jJou sey sinoy Buiuado jleH Ajuno) sy) 5200 S1502 swiano ; ABsaua
3S1A31 0) UOISIDap 3y} UeadA siy) 18bpng saoey \o paonpal - sinoy Buluado pasiaal ||eH Ajuno - sanioey

ay) uo ainssaid e 12adxa jou op am ybnoyiy
\r 5100 MaIAB1 3INJONS - BdNYQ [eNua) [ juawabeue - sanioe
'v1/€10Z Buunp Y (050°0) (EL/E/L DD) %0S3 %92q BUIP|OH - 82IAIBS UINOA

paJinbal 1ab6uo) ou s§ uoyNgUUoD |BUOHIPPE SIYL
\r S00°0 uonesijeuoliel Buipjing - a21AI8S YINOA
1100 sbulaes sjs09 Buipjing - 801/U8G YINOA

S

\¢ 2100 uoneinbiyuooal 821ABG - 32IAIBS YINOA
Jeak [eroueuy SIY) W BpEW Bq [IM W 20003
jo Buines e jey) pajedionue s )i abejs siy) Iy
‘pauels aaey suonenjobau ybnoyy pajyuswaidw \¢ 9200 $10BJJU0D AJUO BN WIB) - BDIAIBS UINOA
uaaq 124 1ou sey pue ABajeNS YINOA
ay) Jo Ked se pasnponul Buiaq sy abueya siy]
J18VAIIHOV 1¥vd NI Qm\./_w__.__.ﬂ_ox\ 39 Q3aAIIHOV
10N NI 3718VYAIIHOVY Ol 03103dX3 AQVY3IHV
AON3IOI443 AODN3IDi443 ADNZIDI443 AON3IDI443
uonewoul (w3z)
JUBA|3J J3YJ0 JO snye)s uogisod uoRISOd JuaLINg Kouaoyg uopduasaqg Asusioyy3
jua.und poddns 0} uoyeuniojul JaYHN4 ; pajebpng
Ll Yyuoly
ST CETRDEIRITE]

-~
L A A1y § Xipuaddy - bujuiea buojaj] ujIG}IUOy 1abpng

Page 54



_Nn_..c wioL

\r AN} (s1equinu 1dnd) sjooyas ul abueyn aydesbowaqg

(82 XIGNIddY) sa1pualpll 1BUI0

S0°0 aviol
\» /€00 MBIIABY B2IAIDG Al - Sauesqr
\¢ GL00 JuBWaNB) 3|qIXa)4 - SauUeIqI]

buiurea buojay]
(p£ XIGNIddY) ubisaq [euopes|uebio

_awv.c aviol
0800 $310UBI013 |euoheladQ - 891AI9S Hodsuel] |00YdS
\¢
. ‘sjuawaoeyd jo Huuojuow pue sjuawaaibe
\r 58€°0 yomawely ybnoiyy Juawainsosd pasocidw) - Aiuno) 4o INO
\f 1000 8018 Aieigr ay) uiyim abelsod Jo uononpay
buiurea] buoay]
(92 XIONFddV) wuswaindoid
J18VAIIHOY 14vd S Q3AIHOV
NI Q3A3IHOV 38
1ON NI 378YAIIHOV Ol a3103dX3 AQVY3HIY
AON3IO1443 AON3IDI443 AONIIDI443 AON3IOI443
uopewsou) (w3z)
jueA8jal Jayjo Jo snjejs uopisod UORISO JUBLIND Aoualoiy3 uopdudsaq Asus|o3
juand poddns 0} uojewsosu) Jayuny payabpng
LI Yuop
ANYSWI] EETREIRTITE |

y <
U Ay § Xipuaddy - bujuiea buoajr| Buuoynuopy 1abpng

Page 55



Page 56



lero IvioL
. saouemoy(e Ajjiqisuodsay |e108dg Jo Jaquinu pasnpal
\p 0100 0) pa)ui| uonoNpaJ SUCHNGUIUOD |N - SBIUEMO||Y SJaqualy
. pajesojje Jaquinu Jo uolonpal
\f 0400 - s@ouemo||y A)[1qisuodsay (e10adg - SBIUBMO}Y Siaquisiy
) asealsou)
\p 010°0 Aleuone)ut ou - (32Uemo|ly 2Iseg) S8oUeMO||Y SIBquapy
\¢ 0L00 abesn 1aded paonpal - S82IAI8G JnesdoWsq
s8oinaS 8]e0dio) - JILYHIOWIA ® TvO3 17
\r Ge00 suondo o mainal - SHIBYD G40
sasiniag alelodio) - Jo P ¥H
\p £00°0 SUII3|ING 320)IOM Padnpal - SWWOo) 8jesodio)
$82IA18S 8)RI0dI07) - BAIINIBXT JBIYD
(92 XIGNIddY) ebuey) edjnies
1590°0 aviol
\¢ 5100 sjuawaalbe gg| s 7 BuioueAanuod - saa4 |eulaIx3
saoiueg 81100103 - JILYHIOWIA ® TvO3T
\r 000 Juswdinba ygSd bunsoy wolj swodul - S8NAIDS YIOMISN
\¢ 6L0°0 s99) pasealsu - siessibay
saoneg 8jelsodio] - SIDIAYIS YINOLSNO ® LOI
\¢ 1200 SB8Ulj XE] J1OUNOY JO J8QUINU PASEaIIU! - SanuaAay
s801MBS B)es0dio) - JONVYNIL
(e2 X1GNIddv) sebiey) g seay
1ind
1yvd A3A3IHOV
JTI8VAIIHOV NI 3A3IHOV HY
1ON ADN3ID1443 IETIAETL 0L 349 O1 g3103dX3 ASRE
AON3IDI243 ADNIIDI44T AONSIDI443
uopewIouy (w3) o_ .
jueAsjad J3yjo Jo snjejs uopjsod UORISOd JUBLIND Aouapiyy uogpauoseq Adusiollg
juanInd poddns o) uogewuoyul Jayun4 pejabpng

LI Yiuoiy

anys | CFIEVEEE]
-
UL A ALY § Xipuaddy - S8ojAI8g 8jeiodion

Page 57



\r 1000 s)0BIU0D (4 jO Bunie) - soueualeuIR) BiEMpPIEH
i sjuswaalbe sayjo

\¢ 0100 ybnoiy) painooid saduadl| osoLIW - Buisuaoi) aiemyos
\» 900°0 yeawysnipe 1abpnq - Buisea
Va 200°0 uonnjos | di Aq pajqeus uotonpai - buliged 1O}
\¢ Z00°0 yuswasnoosd paonpal - alempleH BuplomiaN
\¢ G200 juawdinba AJuN23s mau 0) anp S)jS0J asueUBLIEW PAJINPaY
\¢ 1000 SUONN|OS MBU BIA JuBWaINJ0. - 186png Buiuies]
sa01uaS 81e100i0] - SFDIAYIS ¥IWOLSNI ® LOI

\r 1000 20UBpUB)IE PAJNPaL - SBINJDS/SIBUILIDG/SaDUBIBJILOD
\r 0100 196pnq uo puewsap pasnpal - sainsesy Alajes safojdw3
\r Z00'0 Bujiom apbe ainjn) - suononpas sjuswanosdwi / suonelslly

uoljaNpal $1S09 - BUPLOAA Ui

\o 200°0
0L0°0 $391M18G pue saj|ddng
4
\p €000 JaqLuUNU U UOHONPaI - SUONE)INSUOY SluapIsay | aakojdwg
$801/UBS 8]eJ0dI0D) - 8ANNIBXT J8IYD
(32 XIGNTddV) Juswendsosd
Tin4
J18VAIIHOVY Lue NIQaAgHoY | 93A3HOY
NI 378VAIIHOV AQYIHTV
1ON ADNZ3IDI443 AONIIOI443 38 01 d3193dX3 ADON3IDI443
AON3IDI443
uonewLIou| (w3)
JuURASj81 J3Y)0 10 snjels uojsod UORISOd JuBLND Kouapiy3a uonduosaq Aousioua
jJuaLInd uoddns o) uonewsojul Jayuny pajyabpng
L1 Yyiuoiy

a ___-T_:__ 1
Uyl A .:...-
LIS 5 & Xipuaddy - sadIAlag 8jesodio)

Page 58



saoinag ajesodiod - JONVNIH

Va 600'0 saoinag ¥ seiddng
\o 7000 Aouejnsuo)) pue }Jom sadnesg
\» €000 aiemp.ey - S1anJeg asudisjug
\¢ 200°0 SUBSW 21U0J}D33 JO @sn aIop - Jaded Bunsi]
\¢ 5100 Auelem yym ABojouyos) mau - soueudUIRKY BJEMPIEH
\ L0000 m:::_ucmaxm Ut uoijonpal - S|qewnsuo J8yiQ
\» 000 saljuaoejeq - siuawanoidw) B suoneisly
\¢ 1000 suonnjos Buiuies) punose pjing - uonanpas Jabpng Buiues |
\¢ 1800 $3oiAJ9g pue sayddng
\r 8100 uonenobaua: ela - s)s02 82U pasnpay
\» 0200 qamou 9OUBUSIUIBW SIBM}JOS - SAS AIBUOIJB}jUI JO BOUBPIOAY
\» €100 S]1S00 a1emyjos Aued pliy) Jo uonesijeuoliey
Va £00°0 ainypuadxg | o) peonpay
Ya 000 %¢ Aq puads sjgeouanjjul aanpay
TN4d
3IHOV
318VAIIHOV L NI G3AIHOY Cadl
NI 319GVAIIHOV AQV3IHTV
1ON AON3I0I443 ADNIIOI44T 39 01 a3103dX3 ADNIIOIH4T
AON3IDI443
uonewJsou| (w3)
uopduasaq Aauald
JUBAS|3J J3YJ0 JO Snjeys uonisod OISO JUBLINY Aauepoyyg nd a 191443
juaung poddns 0) uonewsoju) JayN4 pejabpng
L1 YJuon
NS EIEIEETE]

YR

=

6 xjpuaddy - S90iAIag 9jel0dI0)

unojIUOR jebpng

Page 59



Jvooo 10L
\» 1000 Buiuue)d Aouabiaw3 - pajjaael) abea|iw Ui uoldNPay
saomuas ajelodio) - 8ANI8ax3 JaIyd
(P2 XIGN3ddY) uBisaq jeuoyesjuebig
IS¥2°0 Iviol
Va ZL0'0 saonag g saddng
TIN4
TgvAIHoY | |\ Sbv S NIgaAgoy | 93A3IHOV
| I1GVAIIHOV AQY3HTY
LON AON3ID1443 AD 39 01 a3103dX3
N3I0I443 ADNIIOIH43 AON3IDI443
uopewIou| (w3)
jueAajal Jayjo 10 smejs uopisod uonISOd JUBLND Aauaidyg uopduosag Asueldy3
aund poddns o) uopjewsoyu) YN ! payabpng

QLS
JunpLy A 1S

& Xipuaddy - Sa0iAIag 8je10dio)

L1 Yjuon
SepusPy3

Buiiojiuojy 3obpng

Page 60



. yuawabeuepy
\¢ 090°0 saNloe - WEaLSHIOAA SIaSsSy Saining alysiuli4
\r 1200 sabueyd inwio) 0) anp AAa7 all4 Ul UONINPaY
\» 2,00 HAN - sapuabunuod pasnpay
\r ov2Z'0 $}S02 JUBWISBAUI JJO-auo - sauabunuod paonpay
daoueulH 8jelodio) p [eusd
(82 XIGNIddY) sapuady3l Jayo
292°0 avioL
\’ 001°0 MIIABY 1334 |BUIBIU} - SBININH BAIYSIUIS
. sassasold
\» 010 paaoidwi pue Juswainaoid-3 - sanind alysiuly
aaueul-{ 8)es0dio)) P [eAus)
(92 XIONFddY) uawiaindoid
510°0 aviol
\¢ G100 uonNQIIUOI 0} uonaNpal paaibe - nwAD sesyy pAmD
aoueulH 8jeiodio)) 9 [enus)d
(92 X1GN3ddY) abuey) adinieg
1Nd
JFIGVA3IHOV 1yvd NI G3A3IHOV 3¢ A3A3IHOVY
1ON NI 3719VAIIHOVY OL a3103dX3 AQV3IHTV
N3i 3 E A 14
AON3IOI4d AON3IO1443 AONIIDI4T ONZIDI443
uopewsoul (w3z)
ueAd|ad J3Yj0 40 C] d uonduoasag Aouald
JUBAD|BI JBLY) snjejs uoyyso LOBISOd JUaLIND Aouajoyg Jal. a 1343
juaund poddns 0) uojjewojul J8YMUNg pajebpng

& Xipuaddy - ooueul] ajes0diod [enua)

L1 Yjuow

Page 61



0L°0 Iviol

Aouapoilj Jo Buts) \¢ 0010 BIUS jBULBYD WELSHIONN JoWwoisny - saining anysjull4
8y} ssasse 0} uayeuapun buiaq yJom pajesq

Aouaioiye jo Bupu) 0010 JOBJUOD J3WO)SND
ayj ssasse 0} uayeuspun buaq yiom pajielsq 208) 0} 3JB) WESNSHIOAA JBWOISN) - SaININS allysiul 4

AUE.\&UEN 0 mt.:t.: : BLUS) 1DBIUOD WEASHIOAA JSWO0ISN - SaINn4 alysiul
ay) ssasse 0] uayeuapun buiaq yiom pajiejaq \¢ 0010 1480 198ILeD 1SHOM 110 14 sausiud

uonewsoul (w3)
jueA?jal 1330 J0 Snje)s uopisod TR T Aouaiyg uonduosaq Asuaidyy3
juaind poddns o) uonewsojul JBYUN ; payabpng

§ xipuaddy - asueu|4 ajeiodio) [eUd)

L1 Yiuoiy

Page 62



Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 8" MAY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: PEOPLE STRATEGY UPDATE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Overview and Scrutiny Members with a progress report on
the delivery of the People Strategy for 2009-12 (extended to 2014) to
conclude the current strategy as at March 2014.

1.02 To advise Overview and Scrutiny Members of the key themes and
priorities for the next People Strategy for 2014 — 2017 prior to the full
review and development of the new strategy.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The People Strategy is one of the four Corporate Resource Strategies
for the Council. It sets out the Council’s vision and intentions to achieve
effective Organisational Change and modernisation, improved
Leadership and people management practice, increased performance
and productivity, updated working practices and pay and reward
arrangements to better meet the needs of our customers.

2.02 Achievements

Over the last five years, the Council has made significant achievements
in delivering projects under the strategy, which is currently structured
under five key themes and these include:

Customer

o Customer Care Award developed and completed

o Design, development and implementation of the new HR and OD
service

o HRMIS (iTrent) employee self service completed

o Developing and improving the quality of workforce information

Page 63



Change

o ‘Managing Change Successfully’ programme established across
North Wales (with Flintshire Council as the lead) and incorporated
into the Workforce Development Programme

Workforce Planning skills development for HR achieved
Workforce Planning model developed

Development of organisation design principles

Development programme for ‘Managing Agile Teams’ designed
and delivered

o O O O

Capacity

o People Development Framework Programme designed and
implemented in partnership with Coleg Cambria

o Leadership Development options developed and identified for the
existing leadership team

o New Manager Development Programme via E-learning
implemented

o Development of new Behavioural Competency Framework and
Competency Based Appraisal system

Consolidation

o Single Status Agreement on pay and grading model and terms
and conditions of employment negotiated, approved by County
Council and implemented

o Equal Pay settlement strategy developed and negotiations
successfully completed

o New HR policies on Agile Working and Flexible Working Scheme
developed, with supporting guidance notes

Collaboration

o Collaborative working achieved with Wrexham and Denbighshire
Councils to manage agency working accruing procurement
savings

o Agreed a partnership arrangement with Wrexham Council to act
as host authority for providing Occupational Health services.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Flintshire Council is undergoing significant organisational change,
commencing with the redesign of the Council's Operating Model and
Senior Management structure to better meet our changing
circumstances, save money and better use our senior talent to
modernise the organisation. Services within the Council need to be
improved and transformed at a faster pace, whilst protecting high
performance.

Page 64



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

Planning for this change and transitioning the organisation will require
modernisation to be lean, productive, efficient, resilient and high
performing.

The new People Strategy will support the organisation by developing
and embedding leadership values and behaviours and managing the
transition from the current to the future service models with a focus on
organisation design principles, positive cultural change, talent
management, sustainability and on high performance and productivity.

The main priorities for 2014 are:

e Provision of professional HR / OD advice and guidance on
service redesign, alternative service delivery models and the
strategic people implications

e Availability of guidance and supporting toolkit documents on
Organisation Design for Senior Managers Design and
coaching / development programme on organisation change

e Design and implementation of a new workforce planning
model to inform effective organisational redesign and planning
for the future

e Define the impact on middle management tier following the
implementation of Leadership reorganisation and enable the
redesign of the remaining layers as the second phase of the
Organisational Design Programme

e Adapt and implement the appraisal system to include new
leadership behaviours identified during the Leadership
restructure

e Actively promote and drive agile and flexible working styles

¢ Finalise the implementation of Single Status and Equal Pay
settlements

e Establish and agree governance and monitoring of the new
pay and grading model and terms and conditions following
implementation of Single Status

The priorities for the next 3 years, under the new People Strategy, are
proposed to be as follows, in three themes:

e Employee Development and Talent Management — to include
employee engagement, talent management, behaviour and
competencies development, learning and skills development,

e Employee Performance and Productivity — to include
modernised and lean organisational and job design, effective
workforce planning; flexible working arrangements and
working patterns, terms and conditions of employment and
robust performance management,

Page 65



4.00

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

e Health and Wellbeing — to include development and promotion
of Flintshire Healthy Workplace, information channels using
technology for all employees to manage health and welfare, to
develop risk assessments and implement initiatives that
support the reduction of sickness absence as part of the
Council’s Attendance Management Strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS
e That Members note the achievements made in relation to
delivery of the current People Strategy;
e That Members note and endorse the immediate priorities for
2014,
e That Members note the intention to draft a new People Strategy
2014 to 2017, following the leadership restructure in May 2014,
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The resourcing implications for the delivery of the new People Strategy

2014 — 17 will be considered as part of the design and project planning
process.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None identified.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None identified.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken for individual projects
as appropriate.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None specifically arising from this report. Any actions arising from
delivery of projects within the strategy which may impact on employees
will have their own communication and consultation plan.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None specifically arising from this report. Further consultation will be
undertaken with Members and other key stakeholders as the new
People Strategy for 2014-17 is developed.

Page 66



11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Not applicable.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Helen Stappleton
Telephone: 01352 702720
Email: helen.stappleton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY 8™ MAY 2014

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 ltems feed into a Committee's Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be referred
by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council, or Directors.
Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work Programme and
the Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful or a 'test of
significance' to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council's priorities and/or objectives?

Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

How, where and why were the issues identified?

Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any
evidence of this? |s there evidence of public dissatisfaction?

Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

PoNh=

No o

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine
the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they are
members. By reviewing and prioritising the forward work programme
Members are able to ensure it is member-led and includes the right issues.
A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for
Members' consideration which has been updated following the last meeting.

Page 69



400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme attached
as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

N/A

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Telephone: 01352 702427
Email: robert.robins@flintshire.qov.uk

Page 70



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

DATE SUBJECT 0&S REPORT FROM
FOCUS
Thtgrsday Annual Improvement Report from Wales Audit Office Information KA
12" June
2014 Workforce Information Information/monitoring HLS
10.00
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 12 Monitoring GF
Improvement Plan monitoring 2013/14 and 2014/15 Monitoring RJR
Forward Work Programme Development RJR
Thursday GF
10" July Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14
;Jc 2014
10.00
Q
) RJR
l: Forward Work Programme

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\7\3\2\AlI00007237\$5duyye3k.doc Last printed 30/04/2014 8:47 AM Page 1 of 2



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

¢/ obed

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\7\3\2\AlI00007237\$5duyye3k.doc Last printed 30/04/2014 8:47 AM Page 2 of 2



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 11)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 11)

	5 People Strategy Update
	6 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Corporate Resources Forward Work Programme


